Owyhee Subbasin Plan

Appendix 2 – for the Technical Assessment (Chapter 2)

Prepared By:

The Shoshone-Paiute Tribes, Contract Administrator and Owyhee Coordinating Committee Member and The Owyhee Watershed Council, Owyhee Coordinating Committee Member

> Prepared for: The Northwest Power and Conservation Council

> > Final Draft May 28, 2004

Steven C. Vigg, Steven Vigg & Company Editor and Project Coordinator

Disclaimer:

Final approval by the Northwest Power and Conservation Council is contingent upon a favorable review by the Independent Scientific Review Panel and meeting requirements for adoption as an amendment to the Council's Fish & Wildlife Program.

Document Citation:

Shoshone-Paiute Tribes and Owyhee Watershed Council. 2004. Owyhee Subbasin Plan – Appendix 2: for the Technical Assessment (OSP Chapter 2). Steven C. Vigg, Editor. Final Draft. Submitted to the Northwest Power and Conservation Council, Portland, Oregon. May 28, 2004.

Table of Contents

| APPENDIX 2: APPENDICES FOR THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN TECHNICAL A | |
|--|--|
| OSP CHAPTER 2) | |
| 2.1 APPENDIX 1. BIBLIOGRAPHY FOR THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN TECHNICAL ASSE | |
| Focal Species Aquatic | |
| Redband Trout | |
| Focal Species – Terrestrial | |
| Aspen | |
| Elk Mule deer | |
| Sage grouse | |
| Golden Eagle | |
| Pronghorn Antelope | |
| Columbia Spotted Frog | |
| American Beaver | |
| Yellow Warbler | |
| Bald Eagle | 1 |
| White-Faced Ibis | |
| California Quail | |
| Grasshopper Sparrow | |
| California Bighorn Sheep | |
| Peregrine Falcon | |
| Aquatic Habitat | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Terrestrial Habitat | |
| Anadromous Salmonids | |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description | |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 Appendix 2. Raw scores for eleven habitat attributes in the "curi | |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 Appendix 2. Raw scores for eleven habitat attributes in the "curiof the Qualitative Habitat Assessment (QHA) model – for the Idaho, Neva | |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 Appendix 2. Raw scores for eleven habitat attributes in the "curiof the Qualitative Habitat Assessment (QHA) model – for the Idaho, Neva Portions of the Owyhee Subbasin. | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 2 3 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 2 3 3 3 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 2 3 3 3 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 2 4 endix tables above. butes in the header 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri- of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri- of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix 2.3 | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 2 3 3 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 3 3 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 2 3 4 2 3 4 2 4 2 4 2 3 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri- of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix Appendix 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) v Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 endix tables above. butes in the header 4 endix tables above. 4 HA) MODEL4 used for Anadromou 4 4 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attrib of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix Appendix 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 |
| Anadromous Salmonids | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 4 endix tables above. 5 butes in the header 4 endix tables above. 4 HA) MODEL4 Used for Anadromou 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attrib of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix Appendix 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attributes of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appe 2.3 APPENDIX 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. Setup Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Species Range Worksheet | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 endix tables above. butes in the header 4 endix tables above.4 HA) MODEL4 used for Anadromou 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri- of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appe 2.3 APPENDIX 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. Setup Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Appendix Ranking Worksheet Tornado Worksheet | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 andix tables above. butes in the header 4 andix tables above. 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appe 2.3 APPENDIX 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. Setup Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Habitat Ranking Worksheet Definitions Worksheet | 2 RENT" WORKSHEET ADA AND OREGON 3 4 andix tables above. butes in the header 4 andix tables above. 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appee 2.3 APPENDIX 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) t Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. Species Range Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Habitat Ranking Worksheet Definitions Worksheet Definitions Worksheet Definitions Worksheet | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |
| Anadromous Salmonids Subbasin Description 2.2 APPENDIX 2. RAW SCORES FOR ELEVEN HABITAT ATTRIBUTES IN THE "CURI OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (QHA) MODEL – FOR THE IDAHO, NEVA PORTIONS OF THE OWYHEE SUBBASIN. Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee. Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the app The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attri of the QHA rating tables. Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA apped 2.3 APPENDIX 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALITATIVE HABITAT ASSESSMENT (Q 2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) to Subbasins. Appendix 2.3.2 Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets. Secup Worksheet Species Range Worksheet Habitat Ranking Worksheet Tornado Worksheet Definitions Worksheet Definitions Worksheet | 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |

Appendix 2: Appendices for the Owyhee Subbasin Technical Assessment (OSP Chapter 2)

2.1 Appendix 1. Bibliography for the Owyhee Subbasin Technical Assessment.

Focal Species -- Aquatic Redband Trout

- Allen, D.B., Flattter, B.J., Fite, K. 1993. Redband Trout Population and Habitat Inventory in Owyhee County, Idaho. BLM Challenge Cost Share Project ID013-435001-25-9Z. Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, Idaho.
- Allen, D.B., B.J. Flatter, and K. Fite. 1995. Redband Trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss gairdneri) Population and Habitat Surveys in Jump, Reynolds, and Sheep Creeks, and Sections of the Owyhee County, Idaho. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 95-6. Boise, Idaho.
- Allen, D.B., B.J. Flatter, and K. Fite. 1996. Redband Trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss gairdneri) Population and Habitat Surveys in Southern Owyhee County, Idaho. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin 2001-2. Boise, Idaho.
- Allen, D.B., Fite, K., Nelson, J., Flatter, B.J. 1997. Redband Trout Population and Stream Habitat Surveys in Western Owyhee County, Idaho. Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, Idaho.
- Allen, D.B., B.J. Flatter, J. Nelson, and C. Medrow. 1998. Redband Trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss gairdneri) Population and Stream Habitat Surveys in Northern Owyhee County and the Owyhee River and Its Tributaries. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 98-14. Boise, Idaho.
- Grunder, S. 1999. Owyhee River Drainage; Status of Redband Trout Populations. Letter to Johanna Luce. Reprinted in IDEQ DU.
- Herbert, D.W.M. and J.C. Merkens. 1961. The effects of suspended mineral solids on the survival of trout. International Journal of Air and Water Pollution. 5:46-55.
- Idaho Department of Fish and Game, 2001b. Fisheries Management Plan, 2001-2006. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Boise, Idaho.

- IDFG 1998. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Redband Trout Population and Stream Habitat Surveys in Northern Owyhee County and the Owyhee River and Its Tributaries, 1997. June 1998.
- IDFG 1997. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Technical Bulletin No. 97-9. Redband Trout Population and Stream Habitat Surveys in Western Owyhee County, Idaho, 1996. April 1997.
- IDFG 1993. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Redband Trout Population and Stream Habitat Inventory in Owyhee County, Idaho, 1993. Bureau of Land Management Cost Share Project ID013-435001-25-9Z. December 1993.
- Overton, C.K., J.D. McIntyre, R. Armstrong, S.L. Whitwell, and K.A. Duncan. 1995. User's guide to fish habitat: description that represent natural conditions in Salmon River Basin, IdahoUnited States Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station. General Technical Report INT-GTR-322, Ogden, Utah.
- Simpson, J., and R. Wallace. 1982. Fishes of Idaho. University of Idaho Press. Moscow, Idaho.
- Zoellick, B.W. 1999. Stream temperatures and elevational distribution of redband trout in Southwest Idaho. Great Basin Naturalist, vol. 59, no 2.

Focal Species – Terrestrial

NHI (Northwest Habitat Institute). 2001. Interactive Biodiversity Information System. (IBIS). <u>http://www.nwhi.org/ibis/subbasin</u>

Aspen

- Chen, H. Y. H., K. Klinka and R. D. Kabzems. 1998. Site index, site quality and foliar nutrients of trembling aspen: Relationships and predictions. Canadian Journal of Forestry Research, 28:1743-1755.
- Farrar, J. L. 1995. Trees of the northern United States and Canada. Iowa State University Press, Ames, Iowa, USA.
- Johnson, D. W. 1999. Biogeography of quaking aspen (Populus tremuloides). BioScience 46(1):25-31.
- Mueggler, W. F. 1984. Aspen ecology. In Proceedings, Aspen symposium, 22-24 May, 1984, Colorado Springs, Colorado, USA.

Elk

- Bolon, N.A. 1994. Estimates of the Values of Elk in the Blue Mountains of Oregon and Washington: Evidence from Existing Literature. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-316.
 Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 38pp.
- Harper, James A. 1969. Relationship of elk to reforestation in the Pacific Northwest. In Wildlife and Reforestation in the Pacific Northwest, p 67-71. Hugh C. Black. Ed. Sch. For., State Univ., Corvallis.
- Hershey, T. J., and A. T. A. Leege. 1976. Influences of Logging on Elk on Summer Range in North-Central Idaho. In Proceedings of the elk-logging-roads symposium. Moscow, Idaho. Dec. 16-17, 1975. p. 73-80. Susan R. Hieb. Ed. Univ. Idaho, Moscow.
- IDFG. 2001. Statewide Surveys and Inventory: Elk. Project W-170-R-24. Boise, Idaho.

Kirsch 1962

Leckenby 1984

- Leege, T.A. 1968. Prescribed burning for elk in northern Idaho. Tall Timbers Fire Ecol. Conf. Proc. 8:235-254. 1969. Burning seral brush ranges for big game in northern Idaho. Trans. N. Amer. Wildl. and Natur. Resour. Conf. 34:429-437.
- McCorquodale, S.M. 1985. Archeological evidence of elk in the Columbia Basin. Northwest Science. 59: 192-197.

Myers et al. 1999

- Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife. 1992. Draft elk management plan. Portland, OR. 79 pp.
- Pedersen, R.J., and A.W. Adams. 1974. Habitat use by elk. Prog. Rep., Proj. No. W-70-R-4. Portland: Oregon Dep. Fish and Wildlife. 15 pp.

Reynolds 1962

Schmidt, J.L. Gilbert D.L. 1978. Big Game of North America Ecology and Management. Wildl. Mgmt. Inst. 494 pp.

Thomas (1979)

Thomas, J.W., D. Toweill. 1982. Elk of North America Ecology and Management. Wildlife Mgmt. Institue Book. 698 pp.

- Unsworth, J.W., F.A. Leban, D.J. Leptich, E.O. Garton, and P. Zager. 1994. Aerail Survey User's Manual, Second Edition. Idaho Dept. of Fish and Game, Boise, ID. 84 pp.
- U.S. Department of Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service and U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census. 1997. 1996 National survey of fishing, hunting, and wildlife-associated recreation. 115pp.
- Young, V. A., and W. L. Robinette. 1939. Study of the range habits of elk on the Selway Game Preserve. Bull. 34. Moscow: Univ. Idaho. 47 pp.

Mule deer

Jerry Hoagland; personal correspondent; 2004

Kuck, L. and J. Rachael. 2001. Statewide Surveys and Inventory: Mule Deer. Project W-170-R-24. Idaho Dept. of Fish and Game. Boise, Idaho.

Kufeld et al. 1973

- Taylor W. P., 1956. The Deer of North America. Wildlife Management Institute. Stackpole Books, Harrisburg, PA.
- Trout, L.E. and J.L. Thiessen. 1973. Physical Condition and Range Relationships of the Owyhee Deer Herd. Big Game Range Investigations – Project W-141-R-2; Study II, Job 1. Idaho Dept. of Fish and Game. Boise, Idaho.
- Wallmo, O. C., ed. 1981. Mule and black-tailed deer of North America. University of Nebraska Press, Lincoln, NE.
- WDFW. 2002. 2001 Game status and trend report. Wildlife program, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, Olympia, Washington.
- Young, V. A., and W. L. Robinette. 1939. Study of the range habits of elk on the Selway Game Preserve. Bull. 34. Moscow: Univ. Idaho. 47 pp.

Sage grouse

- Anonymous. No Date. Management Guidelines for Sage Grouse and Sagebrush Ecosystems in Nevada.
- Autenrieth, R. E. 1981. Sage grouse management in Idaho Wildlife Bulletin Number 9. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Boise. 239 p.

- Autenreith, R. E., W. Molini, and C. E. Braun. 1982. Sage grouse management practices. Western States Sage Grouse Committee Technical Bulletin 1. Twin Falls, ID. 42pp.
- Batterson, W. M. and W. B. Morse. 1948. Oregon Sage Grouse. Oregon Game Commission, Portland, Oregon Fauna Service 1.
- Bean, R. W. 1941. Life history studies of the Sage Grouse (Centrocercus urophasianus) in Clark County, Idaho. B.S. thesis, Utah State Agricultural College, Logan.
- Beck, T. D. I. 1977. Sage grouse flock characteristics and habitat selection during winter. Journal of Wildlife Management 41:18-26.
- Braun, C. E. 1987. Current issues in sage grouse management. Proceedings of the Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 67:134-144.
- Braun, C. E. 1998. Sage grouse declines in western North America: what are the problems? Proceedings of the Western Association of State Fish and Wildlife Agencies 78:139-156.
- Bureau of Land Management, Fish and Wildlife Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, and Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife and Department of State Lands. 2000. Greater Sage-Grouse and Sagebrush-Steppe Ecosystems, Management Guidelines. 27 p.
- Bureau of Bureau of Land Management, USFWS, USFS, ODFW, ODSL 2000c. Greater Sage Grouse and Sagebrush-Steppe Ecosystems Management Guidelines. August 21.
- Coggins, K. A. 1998. Sage grouse habitat use during the breeding season on Hart Mountain National Antelope Refuge. M.S. thesis, Oregon State University, Corvallis 61 p.
- Connelly, J. W., and C. E. Braun. 1997. Long-term changes in sage grouse Centrocercus urophasianus populations in western North America. Wildlife Biology 3:123-128.
- Connelly, J. W., W. J. Arthur, and O. D. Markham. 1981. Sage grouse leks on recently disturbed sites. Journal of Range Management 52:153-154.
- Connelly, J. W., R. A. Fischer, A. D. Apa, K. P. Reese, and W. L. Wakkinen. 1993. Renesting of sage grouse in southeastern Idaho. Condor 95:1041-1043.
- Connelly, J. W., K. P. Reese, W. L. Wakkinen, M. D. Robertson, and R. A. Fischer. 1994. Sage grouse ecology report. Idaho Department of Fish and Game Job Completion Report. W-160-R-19. Subproject 9. 91 p.

- Dalke, P. D., D. B. Pyrah, D. C. Stanton, J. E. Crawford, and E. F. Schlatterer. 1960. Seasonal movements and breeding behavior of Sage Grouse in Idaho. Trans. North American Wildlife Conference 25: 396-407.
- Dalke, P. D., D. B. Pyrah, D. C. Stanton, J. E. Crawford, and E.F. Schlatterer. 1963. Ecology, productivity, and management of sage grouse in Idaho. Journal of Wildlife Management 27:810-841.
- Drut, M. S., W. H. Pyle, and J. A. Crawford. 1994. Diets and food selection of sage grouse chicks in Oregon. Journal of Range Management 47:90-93.
- Eng, R. L. 1963. Observations on the breeding biology of male sage grouse. Journal of Wildlife Management 27:841-846.
- Eng, R. L., and P. Schladweiler. 1972. Sage grouse winter movements and habitat use in central Montana. Journal of Wildlife Management 36:141-146.
- Enyeart, G. 1956. Responses of sage grouse to grass reseeding in the Pines area, Garfield County, Utah. M.S. thesis, Utah State Agricultural College, Logan. 55 p.
- Fischer, R. A. 1994. The effects of prescribed fire on the ecology of migratory sage grouse in southeastern Idaho.
- Gates, R. J. 1985. Observations of the formation of a sage grouse lek. Wilson Bulletin 97:219-221.
- Gill, R. B. 1965. Distribution and abundance of a population of sage grouse in North Park, Colorado. M. S. thesis, Colorado State University, Fort Collins. 187 p.
- Gray, G. M. 1967. An ecological study of sage grouse broods with reference to nesting movements, food habits and sage brush strip spraying in the Medicine Lodge drainage, Clark County, Idaho. M.S. thesis, University of Idaho, Moscow. 200 p.
- Hanf, J. M., P. A. Schmidt, and E. B. Groshens. 1994. Sage grouse in the high desert of central Oregon: results of a study, 1988-1993. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management Series P-SG-01, Prineville, OR. 56 p.
- Higby, L. W. 1969. A summary of the Longs Creek sagebrush control project. Proceedings Biennial Western States Sage Grouse Workshop 6:164-168.
- Hupp, J. W. and C. E. Braun. 1989. Topographic distribution of sage grouse foraging in winter. Journal of Wildlife Management 53:823-829.
- Klebenow, D. A., and G. M. Gray. 1968. Food habits of juvenile Sage Grouse. Journal of Range Management 21: 80-83.

- Mack, R. N. and J. N. Thompson. 1982. Evolution in steppe with few large, hoofed mammals. American Naturalist 119:757-773.
- Neel, L. A. Nevada Partners in Flight; Bird Conservation Plan. 1999
- Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2002. Oregon Upland Game Bird Harvest 1993-2002. Website: <u>http://www.dfw.state.or.us/ODFWhtml/InfoCntrWild/upland_harvest_summary_1993_2002.pdf</u>. Accessed 4/23/04.
- Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife. 1993. Sage Grouse in Oregon. Wildlife Research Report Number 15. Wildlife Research Section, Portland, Oregon.
- Owyhee County Sage Grouse Local Working Group. 2000. Sage grouse management plan. Owyhee County, Idaho June 2000. (sage grouse data updated 1/2001) 8 pp..
- Patterson, R. L. 1952. The sage grouse in Wyoming. Sage Books, Inc. Denver, CO. 341 p.
- Pellant, Mike. 1990. The cheatgrass-wildfire cycle—are there any solutions? In: McArthur, E. Durant; Romney, Evan M.; Smith, Stanley D; Tueller, Paul T., comps. Proceedings —symposium on cheatgrass invasion, shrub die-off, and other aspects of shrub biology and management: 1989 April 5-7; Las Vegas, NV. Gen. Tech. Rep. INT-276. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station: 11-17.
- Peterson, J. G. 1970. The food habits and summer distribution of juvenile sage grouse in central Montana. Journal of Wildlife Management 34:147-155.
- Remington, T. E., and C. E. Braun. 1985. Sage grouse food selection in winter, North Park, Colorado. Journal of Wildlife Management 49:1055-1061.
- Quigley, T.M., and S.J. Arbelbide, tech. Eds. 1997. An assessment of ecosystem components in the interior Columbia basin and portions of the Klamath and Great Basins. USDA For. Serv. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-405. Portland, OR. 4 vol.
- Robertson, M. D. 1991. Winter ecology of migratory sage grouse and associated effects of prescribed fire in southeastern Idaho. M.S. thesis, University of Idaho, Moscow, ID. 88 p.
- Savage, D. E. 1968. The relationship of Sage Grouse to upland meadows in Nevada. M.S. thesis, University of Nevada, Reno.
- Schroeder, M. A., J. R. Young and C. E. Braun. 1999. Sage Grouse (Centrocercus urophasianus). In The Birds of North America, No. 425 (A. Poole and F. Gill, eds.). The Birds of North America, Inc., Philadelphia, PA.

- Storch, I. (compiler). 2000. Grouse Status Survey and Conservation Action Plan 2000-2004. WPA/BirdLife/SSC Grouse Specialist Group. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland and Cambridge, UK and the World Pheasant Association, Reading, UK. X + 112pp.
- Valentine, J. F. 1990. Grazing management. Academic Press, Incorporated. San Diego, CA. 553pp.
- Wakkinen, W. L. 1990. Nest site characteristics and spring-summer movements of migratory sage grouse in southeastern Idaho. M. S. thesis, University of Idaho, Moscow. 57 p.
- Wakkinen, W. L., K. P. Reese, and J. W. Connelly. 1992. Sage grouse nest locations in relation to leks. Journal of Wildlife Management 56:381-383.
- Wallestad, R. O., and D. B. Pyrah. 1974. Movement and nesting of sage grouse hens in central Montana. Journal of Wildlife Management 38:630-633.
- Wallestad, R. O., and P. Schladweiller. 1974. Breeding season movements and habitat selection of male sage grouse. Journal of Wildlife Management 38:634-637.
- Welch, B. L., J. C. Pederson, and R. L. Rodriguez. 1988. Selection of big sagebrush by Sage Grouse. Great Basin Nat. 48: 274-279.
- Welch, B. L., F. J. Wagstaff, and J. A. Roberson. 1991. Preference of wintering Sage Grouse for big sagebrush. Journal of Range Management 44: 462-465.
- Wisdom, M.J., R.S. Holthausen, B.C. Wales, D.C. Lee, C.D. Hargis, V.A. Saab, W.J. Hann, T.D. Rich, M.M. Rowland, W.J. Murphy, and M.R. Eames. 2000. Source habitats for terrestrial vertebrates of focus in the interior Columbia Basin: Broad-scale trends and management implications. General Technical Report PNW-GTR-XXX. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station, Portland, OR.
- Wright, H.A., L.F. Neuenschwander, and C.M. Britton. 1979. The role and use of fire in sagebrush-grass and pinyon-juniper plant communities: A state-of-the-art review. General Technical Report INT-GTR-58. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station, Ogden, UT.

Golden Eagle

BLM 2004

Carey, Chris G. 2003. Golden Eagle. Pp. 160-162 in Birds of Oregon: A General Reference. D.B. Marshall, M.G. Hunter, and A.L. Contreras, Eds. Oregon State University Press, Corvallis, OR.

- Csuti, B., A. J. Kimerling, T. A. O'Neil, M. M. Shaughnessy, E. p. Gaines, and M. M. P. Huso. 1997. Atlas of Oregon Wildlife: Distribution, Habitat, and Natural History. Oregon State University Press. Corvallis, OR
- Kochert, M. N. 1980. Golden Eagle reproduction and population changes in relation to jackrabbit cycles: implication to eagle electrocutions. Pp. 71-86 in Proceedings of a workshop on raptors and energy developments (R. P. Howard and J. F. Gore, eds.). Idaho Chapter, The Wildlife Society, Boise, ID.
- New York State Department of Environmental Conservation. 2004. Golden Eagle Fact Sheet. <u>Http://www.dec.state.ny.us/website/dfwmr/wildlife/endspec/foeafs.html</u>. Accessed 4/5/2004.
- Olendorff, R. R. 1976. The food habits of North American Golden Eagles. Am. Midl. Naturalist 95: 231-236.
- Steenhof, K., M. N. Kochert, and M. Q. Moritsch. 1984. Dispersal and migration of southwestern Idaho raptors. Journal of Field Ornithologists 55: 357-368.
- Thompson, S. P., R. S. Johnstone, and C. D. Littlefield. 1982. Nesting history of Golden Eagles in Malheur-Harney Lakes Basin, southeastern Oregon. Raptor Research 16: 116-122.

Pronghorn Antelope

- Csuti, Blair. Kimerling, A. O'Neil, T. Shaughnessy, M. Gaines, E. Huso, M. Distribution, Habitat, and Natural History. Atlas of Oregon Wildlife. 1997. pp.442.
- Pronghorn or pronghorn antelope. http://ndow.org/wild/animals/facts/antelope.shtm
- Rachael, J. and L. Kuck. 2000. Job Progress Report: Pronghorn Antelope. Project W-170-R—24. Idaho Dept. of Fish and Game. Boise, Idaho.

Columbia Spotted Frog

- AmphibiaWeb: Information on amphibian biology and conservation. [web application]. 2004. Berkeley, California: AmphibiaWeb. Available: http://amphibiaweb.org/. (Accessed: 2004).
- Birge, W.J., J.J. Just, A.G. Westerman, J.A. Black, and O.W. Roberts. 1975. Sensitivity of Vertebrate Embryos to Heavy Metals as a Criterion of Water Quality. Phase II. Bioassay Procedures Using Developmental Stages As Test. Water Resour. Res. Inst., Kentucky Univ., Lexington, KY; U.S. NTIS PB-240 987: 36 pp.

- Blomquist, S. M., and J. C. Tull. 2002. Rana luteiventris: burrow use. Herpetological Review 33:131.
- Bos, D. H. and J. W. Sites Jr. 2001. Phylogeography and conservation genetics of the Columbia spotted frog (Rana luteiventris; Amphibia, Ranidae). Molecular Ecology, 10:1499-1513.
- Bull, E.L., and M.P. Hayes. 2000. Livestock effects on reproduction of the Columbia spotted frog. J. Range Management. 53(3):291-294.
- Chang, L.W., K.R. Reuhl, and A.W. Dudley, Jr. 1974. Effects of Methylmercury Chloride on Rana pipiens tadpoles. Environ. Res. 8(1):82-91.
- Crawford et al. nwhi.org/ibis 2004
- Csuti, Blair. Kimerling, A. O'Neil, T. Shaughnessy, M. Gaines, E. Huso, M. Distribution, Habitat, and Natural History. Atlas of Oregon Wildlife. 1997. pp.442.
- Davidson C. 1995. Frog and Toad Calls of the Pacific Coast: Vanishing Voices. Ithaca, NY: Library of Natural Sounds, Cornell Laboratory of Ornithology. [Compact disc].
- Engle, J.C. 2004. Fish and Wildlife Biologist. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Snake River Fish and Wildlife Office, Boise, Idaho.
- Engle, J. 2001. Columbia Spotted Frog Great Basin Populations (Owyhee Subpopulation) Long-term Monitoring Plan, Owyhee and Twin Falls Counties, Idaho. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Field Office. Boise, Idaho.
- Engle, J.C. and J.C. Munger. 1998. Population Structure of Spotted Frogs in the Owyhee Mountains. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 98-20. Boise, Idaho.
- Fellers, G.M., D.E. Green, and J.E. Longcore. 2001. Oral chytridiomycosis in the mountain yellow-legged frog (Rana muscosa). Copeia 2001:945-953.
- Gerber, M. M. Carrol, K. Madrid and C. Peterson. 1996. Satus and Habitat Associations of the Spotted Frog (Rana pretiosa) in Southwest Idaho. Technical Bulletin No. 96-1. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management. 11 pp plus maps, tables, and appendices.
- Gotelli, N.J. 1995. A primer of ecology, Sinauer and Associates, Sunderland, Massachusetts. 206 pp.
- Green, D.M., H. Kaiser, T.F. Sharbel, J. Kearsley, and K.R. McAllister. 1997. Cryptic species of spotted frogs, Rana pretiosa complex, in Western North America. Copeia 1997 (1): 1-8.

Green, D.M., T.F. Sharbel, J. Kearsley, and H. Kaiser. 1996. Postglacial range fluctuation, genetic subdivision and speciation in the western North American spotted frog complex, Rana pretiosa. Evolution 50:(1):374-390.

Greenhouse, G. 1976. Effects of Pollutants on Eggs, Embryos and Larvae of Amphibian Species University of California, Irvine, CA, Air Force Tech. Report AMRL-TR-76-31, U.S. NTIS AD-A025 403:24 p.

- Hallock, L.A. and McAllister, K.R. 2002. Columbia Spotted Frog. Washington Herp Atlas. <u>http://www.dnr.wa.gov/nhp/refdesk/herp/</u>
- Hayes, M.P. and M.R. Jennings. 1986. Decline of ranid frog species in western North America: are bullfrogs responsible? Journal of Herpetology 20:490-509.
- Heberger, L. D. Logan, W. Peterson, L. Mealy and M Cauglin. 1994. A Survey of the herpetofauna of the Bruneau Resource Area, Boise District, with focus on the spotted frog, Rana pretiosa. Technical Bulletin No. 96-1. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management. 6 pp plus maps, tables, and appendices.
- Hollenbeck, R. R. 1974. Growth rates and movements within a population of RANA PRETIOSA PRETIOSA Baird and Girard in south central Montana. M.A. thesis, Montana State University, Bozeman.
- Hovingh, P. 1990. Investigations of aquatic resources in the Great Basin and adjacent regions with respect to amphibians, mollusks and leeches: a preliminary report for the tri-state region of Idaho, Nevada, and Utah. March 1990. 12 pp. + appendices.
- Idaho Conservation Data Center. 2000. Spotted frog database. Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, Idaho.
- Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Idaho Department of Parks and Recreation, bureau of Land Management, U. S. Forest Service and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 1995. Draft Habitat Conservation Assessment and Conservation Strategy; Spotted Frog (Rana pretiosa). Idaho State Conservation Effort.
- Kauffman, J.B., W.C. Krueger, and M. Vavra. 1985. Impacts of cattle on streambanks in northeastern Oregon. Journal of Range Management 36(6):683-685.
- Kauffman, J.B. and W.C. Krueger. 1984. Livestock impacts on riparian plant communities and stream-side management implications, a review. Journal of Range Management 37(5):430-437.
- Khangarot, B.S., A. Sehgal and M.K. Bhasin. 1985. Man and biosphere-studies on the Sikkim. Part 5: acute toxicity of selected heavy metals on the tadpoles of Rana hexadactyla. Acta Hydrochim. Hydrobiol. 13(2):259-263.

- Knapp, R. A. and K. R. Matthews. 2000. Non-native fish introductions and the decline of the mountain yellow-legged frog from within protected areas. Conservation Biology 14(2):428-438.
- Lande, R. and G.F. Barrowclough. 1987. Effective population size, genetic variation, and their use in population management, pages 87-124, in Viable Populations for Conservation, M. E. Soul (ed.), Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, Great Britain. McDonald, M. 1996. Amphibian Inventory of the Jarbidge and Snake River Resource Areas. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 96-13. 23 pp.
- Leonard, W.P., Brown H.A., Jones, L.L.C., McAllister, Storm R.M. 1993. Amphibians of Washington and Oregon. Seattle, WA: Seattle Audubon Society. 168 p.
- Licht, L.E. 1975. Comparative life history features of the western spotted frog, rana pretiosa, from low- and high-elevation populations. Canadian Journal of Zoology 53: 1254-1257.
- Morris, R. L. and W. W. Tanner. 1969. The ecology of the western spotted frog, Rana pretiosa pretiosa Baird and Girard, a life history study. Great Basin Naturalist 2:45-81.
- Munger, J. C., M. Gerber, M. Carrol, K. Madrid and C. Peterson. 1996. Satus and Habitat Associations of the Spotted Frog (Rana pretiosa) in Southwest Idaho. Technical Bulletin No. 96-1. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management. 11 pp plus maps, tables, and appendices.
- Munger, J.C., L. Heberger, D. Logan W. Peterson, L. Mealy, and M. Cauglin. 1994. A Survey of the Herpetofauna of Bruneau Resource Area, Boise District, With Focus on the Spotted Frog, Rana pretiosa. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 94-07. Boise, Idaho.
- Munger, J.C., A. Ames and B. Barnett. 1997. 1996 Survey for Columbia Spotted Frogs in the Owyhee Mountains of Southwestern Idaho. Idaho Bureau of Land Management Technical Bulletin No. 97-13. Boise, Idaho.
- Munger J.C., C.R. Peterson, M. McDonald, and T. Carrigan. 2001. Habitat Conservation Assessment for the Columbia Spotted Frog (Rana luteiventris) in Idaho. Publisher unknown.
- NatureServe. 2003. NatureServe Explorer: An online encyclopedia of life [web application]. Version 1.8. NatureServe, Arlington, Virginia. Available <u>http://www.natureserve.org/explorer</u> (Accessed: February 2, 2004).

- Nussbaum, R.A., E.D. Brodie Jr., and R.M. Storm. 1983. Amphibians and reptiles of the Pacific Northwest. University of Idaho Press. Moscow, Idaho. pp. 183-187.
- Patla, D.A. and C.R. Peterson. 1996. The effects of habitat modification on a spotted frog population in Yellowstone National Park in A summary of the conference on declining and sensitive amphibians in the Rocky Mountains and Pacific Northwest. Idaho Herpetological Society and U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Snake River Basin Office Report, Boise, Idaho. 96 pp.
- Pearl, C.A. 2000. Amphibian survey and monitoring on the Baker District, Wallowa-Whitman National Forest: Summary of 1999 Findings. Prepared for the Wallowa-Whitman National Forest, Baker Ranger District.
- Pilliod, D., C.R, Peterson, and P. Ritson. 1996. Impacts of introduced fish on spotted frog populations in high mountain lakes of central Idaho. A Summary of the Conference on declining and Sensitive Amphibians in the Rocky Mountains and Pacific Northwest Idaho Herpetological Society and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Snake River Basin Office Report, Boise, Idaho, November 7-8, 1996.
- Reaser, J. K. 1996. Spotted Frog: Catalyst For Sharing Common Ground in the Riparian Ecosystems of Nevada's Range Landscape. Sharing Common Ground on Western Rangelands: Proceedings of a Livestock/Big Game Symposium, Sparks, NV, February 26-28, 1998.
- Reaser, J.K. 1997. Amphibian declines: Conservation science and adaptive management. Doctoral Dissertation. Stanford University.
- Reaser, J.K. 2000. Demographic analyses of the Columbia spotted frog (Rana luteiventris): case study in spatio-temporal subpopulation variation. Canadian Journal Zoology 78:1158-1167
- Schaffer, M. 1987. Minimum viable populations: coping with uncertainty, pages 69-86, in Viable Populations for Conservation, M. E. Soul (ed.), Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, Great Britain.
- Shipman, M. and S. Anderson. 1997. General survey of the Great Basin population of Columbia spotted frogs (Rana luteiventris) in the Jarbidge, Mountain City, and Santa Rosa Ranger Districts of Northern Nevada. Unpublished report prepared for the U.S. Forest Service, Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest, September 1997.
- Stebbins, R.C. 1985. A field guide to western reptiles and amphibians. Houghton Mifflin Co., Boston. 336 pp.
- St. John, A.D. 1994. The spotted frog in the Lakeview District of Oregon. Report to the Bureau of Land Management Lakeview District Office.

- Schulz, T.T. and W.C. Leininger. 1990. Differences in riparian vegetation structure between grazed areas and exclosures. Journal of Range Management 43(4):295-299.
- Turner, F.B. 1958. Life history of the western spotted frog in Yellowstone National Park. Herptelogica 14: 96-100.
- Turner, F.B. 1960. Population structure and dynamics of the western spotted frog, Rana pretiosa. Baird and Girard, in Yellowstone Park, Wyoming. Ecological Monographs 30(3): 251-278.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 2002a. Section 7 Guidelines: Columbia Spotted Frog Great Basin Population. United States Department of the Interior, Snake River Basin Office, Boise, Idaho.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 2002b. Status Review for the Columbia Spotted Frog (Rana luteiventris) on the Wasatch Front, Utah. United States Department of the InteriorU.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Region 6, Denver, Colorado.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 2002c. Candidate and Listing Priority Assignment Form: Columbia Spotted Frog. United States Department of the Interior, Nevada Fish and Wildlife Office, Reno, Nevada.
- Utah Department of Natural Resources. 1991. Distribution and status of the western spotted frog in central Utah. DRAFT progress Report to U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 29pp.
- Whitaker, J.O., S.P. Cross, J.M. Skovlin, and C. Maser. 1982. Food habits of the spotted frog (Rana pretiosa) from managed sites in Grant County, Oregon. Northwest Science 57(2): 147-154.

American Beaver

- Brenner F. J. 1962. Food consumed by beavers in Crawford County, Pennsylvania. 3. Wildl. Manage. 26(1):104-107. 1967. Spatial and energy requirements of beaver. Ohio J. Sci. 67(4):242-246.
- Collins, T. C. 1976a. Population characteristics and habitat relationships of beaver in Northwest Wyoming. Ph.D. Diss., Univ. Wyoming, Laramie [Abstract only, from Diss. Abst. Int. B Sci. Eng. 37(11):5459, 1971. 1976b. Stream flow effects on beaver populations in Grand Teton National Park. Pages 349-352 in Proceedings of the First Conference - on Scientific Research in the National Parks, U.S. Dept. Int. Nat. Park Serv., Trans. Proc. Series 5. Vol. I.
- Denney, R. N. 1952. A summary of North American beaver management. 1946-1948. Colo. Fish Game Dept. Rep. 28, Colo. Div. Wildl. 14 pp.

- Findley, J.S. 1987. The Natural History of New Mexican Mammals. University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque, p85-88.
- Hoffman, R. S., and D. L. Pattie. 1968. A guide to Montana mammals: identification, habitat, distribution and abundance. Univ. Montana Printing Services, Missoula. 333 pp.
- Jenkins, S. H. 1975. Food selection by beavers: a multidimensional contingency table analysis. Oecologia 21:157-173. 1979. Seasonal and year-to-year differences in food selection by beavers. Oecologia. (Berl.) 44:112-116.1980. A size-distance relation in food selection by beavers. Ecology 61(4):740-746.1981. Problems, progress, and prospects in studies of food selection by beavers. Pages 559-579 in J. A. Chapman and D. Pursley, eds. Worldwide Furbearer Conf. Proc., Vol I. Personnal communication (letter dated 4 January 1982). University of Nevada, Reno, NV.
- Jenkins, S. H., and P. E. Busher. 1979. Castor canadensis. Am. Sot. Mammal, New York. Mammalian Species 120:1-8.
- Leege, T. A. 1968. Natural movements of beavers in southeastern Idaho. J. Wildl. Manage. 32(4):973-976.
- Murray, D. F. 1961. Some factors affecting the production and harvest of beaver in the upper Tanana River Valley, Alaska. M.S. Thesis, Univ. Alaska, Anchorage. 140 pp.
- Slough, B. G., and R. M. F. S. Sadleir. 1977. A land capability classification system for beaver (Castor canadensis Kuhl). Can. J. Zool. 55(8):1324-1335.

Williams, R. M. 1965. Beaver habitat and management. Idaho Wildl. Rev. 17(4):3-7.

Yellow Warbler

Altman 2001

- American Ornithologists' Union. 1998. Checklist of North American birds. Seventh edition. American Ornithologists' Union, Washington, D.C.
- Browning, M.R. 1994. A taxonomic review of Dendroica petechia (Yellow Warbler; Aves: Parulinae). Proceedings of the Biological Society of Washington 107:27-51.
- Gilligan, J., D. Rogers, M. Smith, and A. Contreras. 1994. Birds of Oregon. Cinclus Publishers, McMinnville, OR.

- Lowther, P.E., C. Celada, N.K. Klein, C.C. Rimmer, and D.A. Spector. 1999. Yellow Warbler Dendroica petechia. Pages 1-32 in Poole, A. and F. Gill (editors), The birds of North America, No. 454. The Birds of North America, Inc., Philadelphia, PA.
- NHI (Northwest Habitat Institute). 2001. Interactive Biodiversity Information System. http://www.nwhi.org/ibis/subbasin/subs1.asp
- Radke, B.R. 1984. The nesting ecology of the yellow warbler on Malheur National Wildlife Refuge. File report, Malheur National Wildlife Refuge. 7 pp.

Bald Eagle

- Anthony, R. G., and F. B. Isaacs. 1989. Characteristics of Bald Eagle nest sites in Oregon. Journal of Wildlife Management 53: 148-159.
- Anthony, R. G., R. L. Knight, G. T. Allen, B. R. McClelland, and J. I. Hodges. 1982. Habitat use by nesting and roosting bald eagles in the Pacific Northwest. Trans. N. Am. Wildlife Nat. Res. Conference 47: 332-342.
- Anthony, R. G., M. G. Garrett, and C. A. Schuler. 1993. Environmental contaminants in Bald Eagles in the Columbia River estuary. Journal of Wildlife Management 57:10-19.
- Brown, L. 1977. Eagles of the world. Universe Books, New York.
- Frenzel, R. W. 1985. Environmental contaminants and ecology of Bald Eagles in southcentral Oregon. Ph.D. dissertation, Oregon State University, Corvallis.
- Gabrielson, I. N., and S. G. Jewett. 1940. Birds of Oregon. Oregon State College, Corvallis. (Reprinted in 1970 as Birds of the Pacific Northwest by Dover Publishing, New York).
- Garcelon, D. K. President, Institute for Wildlife Research, Arcata, CA.
- Garcelon, D. K., G. L. Slater, and C. D. Danilson. 1995. Cooperative nesting by a trio of Bald Eagles. Journal of Raptor Research 29:210-213.
- Garrett, M. G., R. G. Anthony, J. W. Watson, and K. McGarigal. 1998. Ecology of Bald Eagles on the lower Columbia River. Final report, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Portland, OR. Contract No. DACW57-84-C-0071.
- Harmata, A. R., G. J. Montopoli, B. Oakleaf, P. J. Harmata, and M. Restani. 1999. Movements and survival of Bald Eagles banded in the Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem. Journal of Wildlife Management 63:781-793.

- IBIS. 2003. Interactive Biodiversity Information System (http://ibis.nwhi.org), Northwest Habitat Institute, Corvallis, OR.
- Isaacs, F. B., and R. G. Anthony. 2001. Bald Eagle nest locations and history of use in Oregon and the Washington portion of the Columbia River Recovery Zone, 1972 through 2001. Unpublished report, Oregon Cooperative Fish and Wildlife Resources Unit, Oregon State University, Corvallis.
- Isaacs, F. B., and R. G. Anthony. 2003a. Bald Eagle. Pp. 140-144 in Birds of Oregon: A General Reference. D.B. Marshall, M.G. Hunter, and A.L. Contreras, Eds. Oregon State University Press, Corvallis, OR.
- Isaacs, F. B., S. L. Reed, E. R. Reed, and R. G. Anthony. 1992. Habits of Bald Eagles wintering in northeastern Oregon and adjacent areas of Washington and Idaho. Unpublished report, Oregon Coop. Wildl. Res. Unit, Oregon State University, Corvallis.
- Jackman, Ron E. Wildlife Biologist, Predatory Bird Research Group, University of California, Santa Cruz, CA.
- Jenkins, J. M., and R. E. Jackman. 1993. Mate and nest site fidelity in a resident population of Bald Eagles. Condor 95: 1053-1056.
- Jenkins, J. M., R. E. Jackman, and W. G. Hunt. 1999. Survival and movements of immature bald eagles fledged in northern California. Journal of Raptor Research 33:81-86.
- McClelland, B. R., L. S. Young, P. T. McClelland, J. G. Crenshaw, H. L. Allen, and D. S. Shea. 1994. Migration ecology of Bald Eagles from autumn concentrations in Glacier National Park, Montana. Wildlife Monographs 125.
- Opp, Ralph R. Retired, Oregon Dept. Fish and Wildlife, Klamath Falls, OR.
- Servheen, C. W. 1975. Ecology of the wintering bald eagles on the Skagit River, Washington. M.S. Thesis. University of Washington, Seattle. 96 pp.

Stalmaster 1976

Stalmaster, M. V. 1987. The Bald Eagle. Universe Books, New York.

Steenhof et al. 1980

United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 1986. Recovery Plan for the Pacific Bald Eagle. USFWS, Portland, Oregon.

- United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2003. Oregon Fish and Wildlife Office website, Bald Eagle fact sheet: <u>http://oregonfwo.fws.gov/EndSpp/FactSheets/Birds/BaldEagle.dwt</u>.
- Watson, J. W., M. G. Garrett, and R. G. Anthony. 1991. Foraging ecology of Bald Eagles in the Columbia River estuary. Journal of Wildlife Management 55: 492-499.
- Witt, J. W. 1996. Long-term population monitoring of Osprey along the Umpqua River in western Oregon. Journal of Raptor Research 30: 62-69.

White-Faced Ibis

Crawford et al. nwhi.org/ibis 2004

- References from Tim Dykstra: John Doremus pers. Com
- Sauer, J. R., J. E. Hines, and J. Fallon. 2003. The North American Breeding Bird Survey, Results and Analysis 1966 - 2002. Version 2003.1, <u>USGS Patuxent Wildlife Research</u> <u>Center</u>, Laurel, MD.

California Quail

Csuti, Blair. Kimerling, A. O'Neil, T. Shaughnessy, M. Gaines, E. Huso, M. Distribution, Habitat, and Natural History. Atlas of Oregon Wildlife. 1997. pp.127. <u>http://www.nhptv.org/natureworks/californiaquail.htm</u>

National Geographic 1999; Handbook of the Birds of the World, Volume 2

Price, Z. 2000. "Callipepla californica" (On-line), Animal Diversity Web. Accessed April 16, 2004 at http://animaldiversity.ummz.umich.edu/site/accounts/information/Callipepla_californica.html.

Grasshopper Sparrow

- Arnold, T. W., and K. F. Higgins. 1986. Effects of shrub coverages on birds of North Dakota mixed-grass prairies. Canadian Field-Naturalist 100:10-14.
- Ashley, P. and Stacey Stovall. 2004. Grasshopper Sparrow. Southeast Washington Subbasin Planning Ecoregion Wildlife Assessment. Appendix F: Focal Species Accounts. February, 2004.

- Basore, N. S., L. B. Best, and J. B. Wooley. 1986. Bird nesting in Iowa no-tillage and tilled cropland. Journal of Wildlife Management 50:19-28.
- Bent, A. C. 1968. Life histories of north American cardinals, grosbeaks, buntings, towhees, finches, sparrows and allies. Dover Publications, Inc., New York, New York.
- Berthelsen, P. S., and L. M. Smith. 1995. Nongame bird nesting on CRP lands in Texas Southern High Plains. Journal of Soil and Water Conservation 50:672-675.
- Best, L. B., H. Campa, III, K. E. Kemp, R. J. Robel, M. R. Ryan, J. A. Savidge, H. P. Weeks, Jr., and S. R. Winterstein. 1997. Bird abundance and nesting in CRP fields and cropland in the Midwest: a regional approach. Wildlife Society Bulletin 25:864-877.
- Blankespoor, G. W. 1980. Prairie restoration: effects on nongame birds. Journal of Wildlife Management 44:667-672.
- Bollinger, E. K. 1988. Breeding dispersion and reproductive success of Bobolinks in an agricultural landscape. Ph.D. dissertation. Cornell University, Ithaca, New York. 189p.
- Brauning, D.W., ed. 1992. Atlas of breeding birds in Pennsylvania. Univ. of Pittsburgh Press, Pittsburgh, PA. 484 pp.
- Brewer, R., G.A. McPeek, and R.J. Adams, Jr., eds. 1991. The atlas of breeding birds of Michigan. Michigan State Univ. Press, East Lansing, MI. 594 pp.
- Delisle, J. M., and J. A. Savidge. 1997. Avian use and vegetation characteristics of Conservation Reserve Program fields. Journal of Wildlife Management 61:318-325
- Ducey, J., and L. Miller. 1980. Birds of an agricultural community. Nebraska Bird Review 48:58-68.
- Faanes, C. A., and G. R. Lingle. 1995. Breeding birds of the Platte River Valley of Nebraska. Jamestown, ND: Northern Prairie Wildlife Research Center home page. <u>http://www.npwrc.usgs.gov/resource/distr/birds/platte/platte.htm</u> (Version 16JUL97).
- Frawley, B.J. and L.B. Best. 1991. Effects of mowing on breeding bird abundance and species composition in alfalfa fields. Wildl. Soc. Bull. 19:135-142.
- Garrett, K., and T. Dunn. 1981. Birds of southern California. Los Angeles Audubon Soc., Los Angeles, CA.
- Harrison, H. H. 1975. A field guide to birds' nests Houghton Mifflin Co., Boston.

- Holmes, A.L. and G.R. Geupel. 1998. Avian population studies at Naval Weapons System Training Facility Boardman, Oregon. Unpubl. rept. submitted to the Dept. of Navy and Oreg. Dept. Fish and Wildl. Point Reyes Bird Observatory, Stinson Beach, CA.
- Horn, D. J., and R. R. Koford. 2000. Relation of grassland bird abundance to mowing of Conservation Reserve Program fields in North Dakota. Wildlife Society Bulletin 28:653-659.
- Hull, S. D., R. J. Robel, and K. E. Kemp. 1996. Summer avian abundance, invertebrate biomass, and forbs in Kansas CRP. Prairie Naturalist 28:1-12.
- Jensen, W. E. 1999. Nesting habitat and responses to habitat edges of three grassland passerine species. M.S. thesis. Emporia State University, Emporia, Kansas. 58 pages.
- Johnson, D. H., and M. D. Schwartz. 1993. The Conservation Reserve Program: habitat for grassland birds. Great Plains Research 3:273-295.
- Kahl, R. B., T. S. Baskett, J. A. Ellis, and J. N. Burroughs. 1985. Characteristics of summer habitats of selected nongame birds in Missouri. Research Bulletin 1056. University of Missouri, Columbia, MO.
- Kantrud, H. A. 1981. Grazing intensity effects on the breeding avifauna of North Dakota native grasslands. Canadian Field-Naturalist 95:404-417.
- Klute, D. S. 1994. Avian community structure, reproductive success, vegetative structure, and food availability in burned Conservation Reserve Program fields and grazed pastures in northeastern Kansas. M.S. thesis. Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas. 168 pages.
- Koford, R. R. 1999. Density and fledging success of grassland birds in Conservation Reserve Program fields in North Dakota and west-central Minnesota. Pages 187-195 in P. D. Vickery and J. R. Herkert, editors. Ecology and conservation of grassland birds of the Western Hemisphere. Studies in Avian Biology 19.
- Larrison, E.J. 1981. Bird of the Pacific Northwest. University Press of Idaho, Moscow, ID. 337pp.
- Laubach, R. 1984. Breeding birds of Sheeder Prairie Preserve, West-central Iowa. Proceedings of the Iowa Academy of Science 91:153-163.
- Patterson, M. P., and L. B. Best. 1996. Bird abundance and nesting success in Iowa CRP fields: the importance of vegetation structure and composition. American Midland Naturalist 135:153-167.

- Prescott, D. R. C. 1997. Avian communities and NAWMP habitat priorities in the northern Prairie biome of Alberta. NAWMP-029. Land Stewardship Centre of Canada, St. Albert, Alberta. 41 pages.
- Quigley, T.M., and S.J. Arbelbide, tech. Eds. 1997. An assessment of ecosystem components in the interior Columbia basin and portions of the Klamath and Great Basins. USDA For. Serv. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-405. Portland, OR. 4 vol.
- Renken, R. B. 1983. Breeding bird communities and bird-habitat associations on North Dakota waterfowl production areas of three habitat types. M.S. thesis. Iowa State Univ., Ames. 90p.
- Renken, R. B., and J. J. Dinsmore. 1987. Nongame bird communities on managed grasslands in North Dakota. Can. Field-Nat. 101:551-557.
- Robbins, C.S., D. Bystrak, and P.H. Geissler. 1986. The Breeding Bird Survey: its first 15 years, 1965-1979. USDI, Fish and Wildl. Serv. Res. Publ. 157.
- Rotenberry, J. T., and J. A. Wiens. 1980. Habitat structure, patchiness, and avian communities in North American steppe vegetation: a multivariate analysis. Ecology 61:1228-1250.
- D. Rich. 1997. Large-scale conservation assessment for Neotropical migratory land birds in the interior Columbia River basin. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-399. Portland, OR.
- Sauer, J.R., J.E. Hines, I. Thomas, J. Fallon, and G. Gough. 1999. The North American Breeding Bird Survey: results and analysis. Version 98.1. Patuxent Wildl. Res. Center, Laurel, MD.
- Smith, R. L. 1963. Some ecological notes on the Grasshopper Sparrow. Wilson Bulletin 75:159-165.
- Smith, R.L. 1968. Grasshopper sparrow. Pp. 725-745 in Life Histories Of North American Cardinals, Grosbeaks, Buntings, Towhees, Sparrows, And Allies, Comp. A.C. Bent Et. Al., Ed. O.L. Austin, Jr. U.S. Natl. Mus. Bull. No. 237, Pt. 2. Washington, D.C.
- Vander Haegen, W. M., F. C. Dobler, and D. J. Pierce. 2000. Shrubsteppe bird response to habitat and landscape variables in eastern Washington, USA. Conservation Biology 14:1145-1160.
- Vickery, P. D. 1996a. Grasshopper Sparrow (Ammodramus savannarum). In The Birds of North America, No. 239 (A. Poole and F. Gill, eds.). The Academy of Natural Sciences, Philadelphia, PA, and The American Ornithologists' Union, Washington, D.C.

- Whitmore, R. C. 1980. Reclaimed surface mines as avian habitat islands in the eastern forest. American Birds 34:13-14.
- Wiens, J. A. 1969. An approach to the study of ecological relationships among grassland birds. Ornithological Monographs 8:1-93.
- Wiens, J. A. 1970. Avian populations and patterns of habitat occupancy at the Pawnee site, 1968-1969. U.S. International Biological Program, Grassland Biome Technical Report 63. Colorado State University, Fort Collins, Colorado. 57 pages.
- Wiens, J. A. 1973. Pattern and process in grassland bird communities. Ecological Monographs 43:237-270.

California Bighorn Sheep

Buechner 1960

Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 2003

Parker, T. and M. Scott. 1985. Bighorn Sheep Management Plan: 1986 – 1990. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Boise, Idaho.

Seton 1953

Toweill, Dale ed. 2000. Statewide Surveys and Inventory: Bighorn Sheep. Project W-170-R-24. Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, Idaho.

Toweill and Geist 1999

Peregrine Falcon

- Ambrose, R.E., A. Matz, T. Swem, and P. Bente. 2000. Environmental contaminants in American and arctic peregrine falcon eggs in Alaska, 1979-95. Technical Report NAES-TR-00-02, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Northern Alaska Ecological Services, Fairbanks, AK. 67 pp.
- Banasch, U., J.P. Goossen, A.E. Riez, C. Casler, and R.D. Barradas. 1992.
 Organochlorine contaminants in migrant and resident prey of peregrine falcons, Falco peregrinus, in Panama, Venezuela, and Mexico. Can. Field-Nat. 106:493-498.
- Cade, T. J. 1960. Ecology of the peregrine and gyrfalcon populations in Alaska. University of California Publ. Zool. 63: 151-290.

- California Department of Fish and Game. 2004. California Wildlife Habitat Relationships System – Peregrine Falcon. <u>http://www.dfg.ca.gov/whdab/html/b129.html</u>. Accessed online: 3/17/04
- Court, G.S., C.C. Gates, D.A. Boag, J.D. MacNeil, D.M. Bradley, A.C. Fesser, J.R. Patterson, G.B. Stenhouse, and L.W. Oliphant. 1990. A toxicological assessment of peregrine falcons, Falco peregrinus tundrius, breeding in the Keewatin District of the Northwest Territories, Canada. Can. Field-Nat. 104:255-272. Fyfe et al. 1990
- Gabrielson, I. N., and S. G. Jewett. 1940. Birds of Oregon. Oregon State College, Corvallis. (Reprinted in 1970 as Birds of the Pacific Northwest by Dover Publishing, New York).
- Henny, C. J., and J. E. Pagel. 2003. Peregrine Falcon. Pp. 166-170 in Birds of Oregon: A General Reference. D.B. Marshall, M.G. Hunter, and A.L. Contreras, Eds. Oregon State University Press, Corvallis, OR.
- Henny, C. J., and M. W. Nelson. 1981. Decline and present status of Peregrine Falcons in Oregon. Murrelet 62: 43-53.
- Hickey, J.J. and D.W. Anderson. 1968. Chlorinated hydrocarbons and eggshell changes in raptorial and fish-eating birds. Science 162:271-273.
- Johnstone, R.M., G.S. Court, A.C. Fesser, D.M. Bradley, L.W. Oliphant, and J.D. MacNeil. 1996. Long-term trends and sources of organochlorine contamination in Canadian tundra Peregrine Falcons, Falco peregrinus tundrius. Environmental Pollution. 93(2): 109-120.
- Morse, N.J. 1994. Contaminants in peregrine falcon (Falco peregrinus) eggs from Virginia, Maryland, and West Virginia. Technical Report, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Virginia Field Office, White Marsh, VA. 19 pp.
- Peterson, R. T. 1988. Forward. In Peregrine Falcon populations their management and recovery (T. J. Cade, J. H. Enderson, C. G. Thelander and C. M. White, eds.). Peregrine Fund, Inc., Boise, ID.
- Service, Virginia Field Office, White Marsh, VA. 19 pp.NatureServe. 2003. NatureServe Explorer: An online encyclopedia of life [web application]. Version 1.8. NatureServe, Arlington, Virginia. Available http://www.natureserve.org/explorer. (Accessed: March 23, 2004).
- Steidl, R.J., C.R. Griffin, L.J. Niles, and K.E. Clark. 1991. Reproductive success and eggshell thinning of a reestablished peregrine falcon population. J. Wildl. Manage. 55:294-299.

- White, C. M., N. J. Clum, T. J. Cade, and W. G. Hunt. 2002. Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus). In The Birds of North America, No. 660. A. Poole and F. Gill, eds. The Birds of North America, Inc., Philadelphia, PA.
- Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 2002. Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus). <u>http://www.dnr.state.wi.us/org/land/er/factsheets/birds/falcon/htm</u>. Accessed Online: 3-17-04.

Aquatic Habitat

- Nevada Division of Wildlife. 1997. Federal Aid Job Progress Reports F-20-33, 1997. Wildhorse Reservoir Region II.
- Rosgen, D. 1996. Applied river morphology. Wildland Hydrology: Pagosa Springs, CO.
- USBR. 1993. Owyhee Reservoir Resource Management Plan: Draft Environmental Assessment. Pacific Northwest Region, Central Snake Projects Office. Boise, Idaho.
- USBR. 1998a. Biological Assessment: Bureau of Reclamation Operations and Maintenance in the Snake River Basin Above Lower Granite Reservoir. Pacific Northwest Region, Boise, Idaho.

Terrestrial Habitat

- Anonymous. No Date. Management Guidelines for Sage Grouse and Sagebrush Ecosystems in Nevada.
- Burkhardt, J.S., and E.W. Tisdale. 1969. Nature and Successional Status of Western Juniper in Idaho. Journal of Range Management 22(4):264-270.
- Burkhardt, J.W. and E.W. Tisdale. 1976. Causes of Juniper Invasion in Southwestern Idaho, Ecology. 57; pp 472-484.
- Chaney, E.; W. Elmore, and W.S. Platts. 1993. Livestock Grazing on Western Riparian Areas. Northwest Resource Information Center. Produced for the Environmental Protection Agency.

Crawford and Kagan 2004

Duff, D.A. 1979. Riparian habitat recovery on Big Creek, Rich County, Utah. In: Proceedings, Forum-Grazing and riparian/stream ecosystems. Trout Unlimited, Inc. p. 91.Hansen, P.L., R.D. Pfister, K. Boggs, B.J. Cook, J. Joy, and D.K. Hinckley. 1995. Classification and Management of Montana's Riparian and Wetland Sites. Montana Forest and Conservation Experiment Station, The University of Montana, School of Forestry, Miscellaneous Publication No. 54. 646 pp.

Edge et al. 2004

- Golden Eagle Audubon Society. 1997. Breeding Bird Survey of Old Growth/Seral, Prescribed Burn and Clearcut Stands of Western Juniper. Technical Bulletin No. 97-12. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management. 19 pp.
- Hansen, P.L., R.D. Pfister, K. Boggs, B.J. Cook, J. Joy, and D.K. Hinckley. 1995. Classification and Management of Montana's Riparian and Wetland Sites. Montana Forest and Conservation Experiment Station, The University of Montana, School of Forestry, Miscellaneous Publication No. 54. 646 pp.

http://www.sierraclub.org/owyhee

- Jankovsky-Jones, M., C. Murphy, C. Coulter, and R. Moseley. 2001. Riparian and Wetland Plant Associations of Southwestern Idaho. Bureau of Land Management National Science and Technology Center Publication. 191 pp plus appendices.
- Kauffman, J.B. and W.C. Krueger1984. Livestock Impacts on Riparian Ecosystems and Streamside Management Implications: A Review. Journal of Range Management 37(5): 430-438.
- Kuchler, A.W. 1964. Potential Natural Vegetation of the Conterminous United States. American Geographical Society, New York.

Lanner 1984

- Leonard, S., G. Kinch, V. Elsbernd, M. Borland, and S. Swanson. 1997. Grazing management for riparian-wetland areas. Riparian Area Management TR 1737-14. USDI, Bureau of Land Management, National Applied Resource Sciences Center, Denver, CO. 63pp.Manning, M.E. and W.G. Padgett. 1995. Riparian Community Type Classification for Humboldt and Toiyabe National Forests, Nevada and Eastern California. United States Forest Service Publication R4-Ecol-95-01. 306 pp. plus appendices.
- Marlow, C. 1985. Controlling riparian zone damage with little forage loss. Montana Agriculture Research, Fall 1985. Montana Agricultural Experiment Station, Bozeman.
- Masters, L., S. Swanson, and W. Burkhardt. 1996a. Riparian grazing management that worked: I. Introduction and winter grazing. Rangelands 18(5) 192-195.

- Masters, L., S., Swanson, and W. Burkhardt. 1996b. Riparian grazing management that worked: II. Rotation with and without rest and riparian pastures. Rangelands 18(5) 196-200.
- Murphy, C. J. and S. K. Rust. 2001. Inventory and assessment of terrestrial vegetation on the 45 ranch allotment. Report from contract with The Nature Conservancy. 40 pp plus maps, tables, and appendices.

Neel 1999

Nevada GAP

- Northeastern Nevada Stewardship Group, Inc. 2001. Draft Elko County Sagebrush Ecosystem Conservation Plan. Elko, Nevada.
- Owyhee-Bruneau Canyonlands Coalition accessed 10-7-01 (http://www.owyheecanyonlands.org/index.htm).
- Pellant, M., P. Shaver, D.A. Pyke and J.E. Herrick. 2000. Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health Version 3. Interagency Technical Reference TR-1734-6, Denver CO: US Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management, National Science and Technology Center. 130 pp.
- Perkins, M. J. and J. R. Peterson. 1997. Bat distribution in the juniper woodlands of the Idaho Owyhee Mountains, summer1996. Technical Bulletin No. 97-4. U. S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management. 12pps.
- Sauder, J. D. 2002. Factors affecting avian abundance and diversity in sagebrush steppe, juniper woodland and aspen woodland communities of southeast Idaho. Unpubl. M.S. Thesis. Idaho State University, Pocatello, Idaho. 87 pps.
- Schnitzspahn, D.K. Fite, K. Moore, M. Medberry, A. Haak and E. Kingston. 2000. Owyhee-Bruneau Canyon Lands: Legacy Landscape Overview. Wilderness Society, American Lands, Committee for Idaho's High Desert, and Sierra Club.
- USDI Bureau of Bureau of Land Management, USFWS, USFS, ODFW, ODSL 2000c. Greater Sage Grouse and Sagebrush-Steppe Ecosystems Management Guidelines. August 21.
- Winward, A.H. 2000. Monitoring the Vegetation Resources in Riparian Areas. USDA Forest Service. Rocky Mountain Research Station. General Technical Report RMRS-GTR-47. April 2000.

Anadromous Salmonids

Chapman, W. M. 1940. Report of a field trip to the Snake River drainage in Idaho and Eastern Oregon. Washington Department of Fisheries. Olympia, Washington.

Subbasin Description

Bailey, R.G. 1995. Description of the Ecoregions of the United States. Second Edition. USDA Forest Service Miscellaneous Publication 1391.

Bureau of Reclamation 1958

- Gresswell, R.E. 1995. Yellowstone cutthroat trout. Pages 36-54 in M.K. Young, editor. Conservation assessment for inland cutthroat trout. Gen. Tech. Rep. RM-256. U.S. Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Forest and Range Experiment Station, Fort Collins, CO. 61 p.
- Idaho Army National Guard. 2000. Draft Integrated Cultural Resources Management Plan 2001-2006. Boise, ID
- Idaho Department of Environmental Quality. Date Unknown (DU). North and Middle Fork Owyhee Subbasin Assessment and Total Maximum Daily Load. Boise Regional Office. Boise, Idaho
- Idaho Department of Fish and Game (IDFG). 2001a. Upland Game, Study II, Job 1, Project W-170-R-24, Progress Report, Boise, Idaho.
- Idaho Department of Lands (IDL). Website. Accessed May, 2001. http://gis.idl.state.id.us/
- Idaho Department of Parks and Recreation website. Accessed 10-7-01 <u>http://www.idahoparks.org/parks/bruneaudunes.html</u>
- Kuchler, A.W. 1964. Potential Natural Vegetation of the Conterminous United States. American Geographical Society, New York.
- Meyer, K.A., D.J. Schill, F.S. Elle, and W.C. Schrader. In review. A comparison of Yellowstone cutthroat trout abundance and size structure from the 1980s to 1999-2000 across their historical range in Idaho. North American Journal of Fisheries Management.
- Northwest Power Planning Council. 1989. Protected areas database resulting from Northwest Power Planning Council's 1989 protected areas decision and rulemaking. (Unpublished, 1989, StreamNet Library)

- Orr, E.L. and W.N. Orr. 1996. Geology of the Pacific Northwest. New York: McGraw-Hill Co.
- Perkins, R.R. and W. Bowers. 2000. Owyhee River Basin Fish Management Plan. Draft. Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife Southeast District.
- Platts, W. 1985. Stream Habitat and Fisheries Response to Livestock Grazing and Instream Improvement Structures, Big Creek, Utah. Journal of Soil and Water Conservation: 374-379.
- Quigley, T.M., R.W. Haynes, and R.T. Graham. 1996. Integrated Scientific Assessment for Ecosystem Management in the Interior Columbia Basin and portions of the Klamath and Great Basins. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. Pacific Northwest Research Station, Portland, OR. 303 pp.
- Reid, L.M. 1993. Research and Cumulative Watershed Effects. Albany, CA: U. S. Forest Service, Pacific Southwest Research Station.
- Rieman, B.E., and J.D. McIntyre. 1993. Demographic and habitat requirements for conservation of bull trout. Gen. Tech. Rep. INT-302. U.S. Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station, Ogden, UT. 38 p.
- Rinella, F.A., W.H. Mullins, and C.A. Schuler. 1994. Reconnaissance Investigation of Water Quality, Bottom Sediment, and Biota associated with Irrigation Drainage in the Owyhee and Vale Projects, Oregon and Idaho, 1990-91. U.S. Geological Survey, Water Resources Investigations Report 93-4156.
- United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). 1958. Upper Owyhee Project: Idaho Oregon. United States Department of Interior.]
- USBR. 1979. Owyhee. U.S. Government Printing Office.
- USBR. 1983. Owyhee Project. Pacific Northwest Region, Bureau of Reclamation
- US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). 1998b. Snake River Resource Review: Resource Needs Assessment. Draft. Boise, Idaho.
- United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service (USDA). 2000. Natural Resources Conservation Service Strategic Plan 2000 2005.
- USDI Bureau of Land Management. 1993. Main, West, Little and North Fork Owyhee National Wild and Scenic Rivers Management Plan and Environmental Assessment. Vale District Office.

- USDI Bureau of Land Management. 1998. Draft Southeast Oregon Resource Management Plan/Environmental Impact Statement. Vols. 1-2. Vale District Office, Vale, Oregon.
- USDI Bureau of Land Management. 1999. Proposed Owyhee Resource Management Plan and Final Environmental Impact Statement. 3 volumes. Lower Snake River District. Boise, Idaho.
- Younk, J.V. and M.J. Bechard. 1994. Breeding Ecology of the Northern Goshawk in High-Elevation Aspen Forests of Northern Nevada. Studies in Avian Biology 16:119-121.

2.2 Appendix 2. Raw scores for eleven habitat attributes in the "current" worksheet of the Qualitative Habitat Assessment (QHA) model – for the Idaho, Nevada and Oregon portions of the Owyhee Subbasin.

Appendix Table 2.2.1 QHA scores for the Idaho portion of the Owyhee Subbasin.

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | |
|------------------------------|---|-----|-----|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|--|
| | | | HUC | 17050 | 108 | | | | | | · | | |
| Jordan Cr1 | Jordan Cr. From OR Boundary to BLM boundary section | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr2 | From end of #2 to Rail Creek | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr3 | Rail Cr. Confluence to BLM boundary | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr4 | BLM boundary near Buck Cr. to BLM boundary | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr5 | BLM boundary section line to BLM boundary upstream of Louse Cr. | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr6 | BLM boundary upstream of Louse Cr. To BLM boudary section | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Jordan Cr7 | BLM Boundary to state land section boundary | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|--|
| Jordan Cr8 | State linelands boundary to headwaters of Jordan Cr. | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 4.0 | |
| Williams Cr. | BLM segments | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| Williams Cr. | Including Pole Bridge Cr. And West Cr. | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| Duck Cr. | All | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Old Man Cr. | All | 1.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 0.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | |
| South Mountain Creek | Lower BLM upper put state includes Howl Cr. Cyote Cr. | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rail Cr. | All | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Washington Gulch | All | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| Flint Cr.1 | Lower | 2.8 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | |
| Flint Cr.2 | Upper Includes East Cr. | 2.8 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | |
| South Boulder Cr. | From confluence with North Boulder Cr. To confluence with Mill Cr. | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.3 | 3.0 | 2.8 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Upper South Boulder Creek | Mill Creek confluence to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.5 | |
| Indian Cr. | Bogus Cr. (Lower) - confluence with South Fork Boulder to Section 10 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 0.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Bogus Cr. | Upper above section 10 and above | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|--|
| Combination Cr. | Lower reach of stream | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| Rose Cr. | Up to state section. | 2.8 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Josephine | includes Wickiup and Long Valley and Headwater Josephine | 2.8 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | |
| Louisa Cr. | From confluence with Rock Cr. | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 0.0 | |
| Lower Rock Cr1 | From confluence of North Boulder to Meadow Creek. | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rock Cr2 | From Meadow Creek to BLM | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rock Cr3 | BLM portion in Section 26 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rock Cr4 | From BLM/PVT boundary in Sec. 26 to above Triangle Reservoir. | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rock Cr. 5 | BLM reach above Triangle Reservoir to Sheep Creek/private boundary | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Rock Cr. 6 | From Sheep Creek/private boundary to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Meadow Cr. | Headwaters to confluence with Rock Cr. | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Deer Cr. | Confluence with Big Boulder to state section | 2.8 | 2.8 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. |
|------------------------------|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | 36 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Owl Cr. | Includes Minear Cr. (Confluence of Lone Tree to headwaters) | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| North Boulder-1 | From confluence with Big Boulder; BLM reach to Private | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| North Boulder-2 | From confluence with Mamouth Cr. To headwaters | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| Louse Cr. | Includes Cottonwood Cr. From confluence of Jordan Cr. To headwaters | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Upper Trout Cr. | From Split Rock Canyon to headwaters, including Nichols, Wood Canyon creeks | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.8 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 |
| Split Rock Canyon | Confluence with Trout Creek to headwaters. | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 |
| Cow Cr2 | From confluence with Wildcat Canyon Cr. To headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Soda Cr. | From confluence of Cow Cr. To headwaters | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| HUC 17050107 | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. |
|------------------------------|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| NF Owyhee 1 | Lower; From the Oregon State line to the confluence of Juniper Cr. | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| NF Owyhee 2 | Upper; Headwaters of North Fork , Lower Noon Cr. And Lower Pleasant Valley Cr. | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| Upper Pleasant Valley Cr. | From the top of Sec. 7 to headwaters | 2.0 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 3.5 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 |
| Cabin Cr. | From the confluence with Juniper Cr. To the headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Juniper Cr. 1 | From the confluence with the North Fork Owyhee to lower private boundary | 2.8 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Juniper Cr. 2 | From the start of the private up to the headwaters | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Lone Tree Cr. | From Oregon State line to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| Cottonwood Cr. | From the upper private boundary (section 18) to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 |
| Squaw Cr. 1 | From Oregon State line to lower private boundary (section 13) | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 |
| Squaw Cr. 2 | From the start of | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|--------------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | private in section 14 to the BLM in the northwest corner of section 31 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Squaw Cr. 3 | From private to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 |
| Pole Cr. | Oregon State line to headwaters | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| Middle Fork Owyhee | Oregon State line to headwaters | 0.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 |
| | | | HUC | 17050 ⁻ | 106 | | | | | | | |
| Little Owyhee | From the Nevada State line to the confluence with South Fork Owyhee | 2.0 | 2.3 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 |
| | | | HUC | 17050 ⁻ | 105 | | | | | | | |
| South Fork Owyhee | From Nevada State line to the confluence with Owyhee River | 2.8 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 |
| | | | HUC | 17050 ⁻ | 104 | | | | | | | |
| Blue Cr3 | Blue Cr. Reservoir to headwaters | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 |
| Shoofly Cr1 | Confluence to BLM boundary | 1.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 |
| Shoofly Cr2 | Private/BLM boundary to Bybee reservoir | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 |
| Shoofly Cr3 | Bybee reservoir to headwaters | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|--|
| Owyhee River | DV reservoir border to confluence | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | |
| Owyhee River DVIR portion | Mouth of canyon to NV state line | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Battle Cr1 | Confluence to private in sec. 10 (cottonwood draw) | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Battle Cr2 | Section 10 to above state section 36 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | |
| Battle Cr3 | State section 36 to headwaters | 1.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | |
| Dry Cr1 | confluence to reservoir | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | |
| Dry Cr2 | Reservoir to headwaters | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | |
| Big Springs Cr1 | confluence to reservoir | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | |
| Big Springs Cr3 | BLM boundary to private | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Deep Cr1 | Confluence to private | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | |
| Deep Cr2 | Private to mid section 10 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | |
| Deep Cr3 | section 10 to Stoneman Cr. Confluence | 3.0 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | |
| Deep Cr4 | headwaters including: | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Stoneman Cr. | Confluence to headwaters | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | |
| Current Cr. | Confluence to headwaters | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | |
| Nickel Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|--|
| Smith Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Castle Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | |
| Beaver Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Red Canyon Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Petes Cr. | Confluence to headwaters including: | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | |
| Dickshooter Cr. | Confluence to headwaters | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Pole Cr1 | Confluence to Camas Cr. Confluence including Camel Cr. | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |
| Pole Cr2 | Camas confluence to headwaters | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | |
| Camas Cr. | Confluence to headwaters | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | |

Appendix Table 2.2.2 QHA scores for the Nevada portion of the Owyhee.

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|---|---|-----|-----|--------|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | | | HUC | C 1705 | 50104 | | | | | | | | |
| E.F. Owyhee ID-NV state line to Paradise Point Diversion | Irrigated hay fields, No RBT habitat | 2.5 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1 |
| Boyle Cr | Starts in NV and enters Owyhee in ID | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| S.F of Boyle Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| E.F. Owyhee Paradise Point to Duck Valley Indian Res border | DVIR | 2.0 | 0.5 | 0.5 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 4.0 | 1 |
| Skull Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| N.F. of Skull Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| E.F. of Skull Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| Reed Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| Summit Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| Fawn Cr | USFS RBT occupied for sure 4.8miles | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 1.5 |
| Jones Cr | | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| Granite | probably fishless | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 |
| E.F. Owyhee Duck Valley Indian Res border to Patsville (Mill Cr) | U.S.F.S. | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 0.5 | 4.0 | 1.5 |
| Slaughter House Cr | Occupied RBT 2 miles | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Brown's Gulch (Slaughter house Trib | 2.4 miles RBT occupied | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Miller Cr. | 3 mile occupied RBT | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| West Fr. (of Slaughterhouse Cr) | 1.5 miles occupied RBT | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| California Cr | Min. occupied RBT by headwater of Cr. | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| North Fr (trib of | No RBT, lack of | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|---|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| California Cr) | flow(Drought yr) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dip Cr | 1 mile RBT occupied | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Big Springs Cr | Unoccupied (insufficient flow) | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| South Fr. | 2 mile RBT occupied | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Pixley | 1 mile RBT occupied | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| E.F. Owyhee Mill Cr.to Badger Cr | U.S.F.S. | 2.5 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 1.5 |
| Lower Mill Cr to S.F Owyhee River | Unoccupied, pollution, mine tailings | 0.5 | 2.0 | 0.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 0.5 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Upper Mill Cr to Rio tinto Mine | occupied RBT whole distance in none drought years | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| McCall Cr. | 5.5 miles occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Allegheny | Native Dace only | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Cold Spring (trib to Allegheny) | Native Dace only | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Trail Cr | 8.2 occupied RBT, Brook Trout(MGT concern) | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2 |
| Van Duzer Cr. (Trib to Trail Cr) | 5 mile occupied, Brook Trout (MGR concen) | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2 |
| Lime Cr (trib to Van Duzer) | .3 occupied by RBT, Brook Trout prsnt | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Cobb Cr (trib to Van Duzer) | 4.5 RBT occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Deer Cr (trib to Trail Cr.) | min. occupied RBT in a single pool | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| Springs Cr. | 0.1 mile RBT occupied, Brook trout | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| Wood Gulch | Mine prsnt, 2 mile RBT occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Hutch Cr | 1mile RBT occupied, Brook Trout | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 2 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|--|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Timber Gulch | 0.35 RBT occupied, Brook Trouth | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| Sheep cr | 2 mile RBT occupied, Brook Trout | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Road Canyon | 1.2 RBT occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Gravel Cr | Lower 0.1 RBT occupied (spawning ground) | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| E.F. Owyhee Badger Cr. To Wildhorse Res. | U.S.F.S. | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| Badger Cr. | 7 miles RBT occupied, some livestock concerns, fair condition, 1600 fish | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Beaver Cr. | All occupied by RBT | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Wildhorse Res | | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 2 |
| Hendricks Cr | RBT appearing (questionalble genetics,rainbow?) | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Warm Cr (Trib of Hendricks) | not RBT occupied, warm water temp, soil type/erosion, agriculture | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 2 |
| Penrod | RBT occupied entire way | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Hay meadow Cr | only native dace present | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Thompson Cr (hay meadow trib) | no fish present in drough yrs | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Martin Cr. (trib to Penrod) | 4.5 RBT occupied, Brook Trout | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 2 |
| Gold Cr. (trib to Martin Cr) | 1.8 RBT occupied | 2.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Sweet Cr | 0.5 RBT occupied | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Rosebud Cr | Native Dace only | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Deep Cr trib to Wildhorse (E.F. Owyhee) | 1.5 miles occupied RBT, some on prvt land? | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Clear Cr trib to (Deep Cr) | no fish present in drough yrs | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|--|---|-----|-----|--------|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Riffe Cr (Deep Cr) | 3 mile occupied RBT, beaver ponds | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| N.F. of Deep Cr | No RBT, lack of flow(Drought yr) | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Middle Fork of Deep Cr | 2 mile occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| S.F of Deep Cr | 3 miles RBT occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| E. F. Owyhee Above Wildhorse Res to head waters | Spotted Frog habitat | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Clear Cr trib to Upper E.F Owyhee | Historic potential habitat, poisioning in 1988 to remove chub, killed Trout | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2 |
| Hanks Cr trib to Upper E.F Owyhee | Dace prsnt, habitat concerns (livestocke) no RBT | 1.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| | | | HUC | C 1705 | 50105 | | | | | | | | |
| State line to Petan ranch | Red Band prsnt seasonally(Spring) during good water yrs when sutiable water temps | 2.5 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 2.5 |
| Lower boundry of Petan Ranch to Red Cow Cr. | Red Band prsnt seasonally(Spring) during good water yrs when sutiable water temps | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 2.5 |
| From Red Cow to Hot cr. | RBT Occupied yr round, low density | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 2.5 |
| hot creek to McCann | Prvt Land, Brook Trout prsnt in Spring Heads, RBT are seasonal, White Fish yr round | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1 | 2.5 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Four mile cr from S.F. to Chimney Res. | RBT Down migration during good water yrs, dry 10months of yr, flow controlled by Chimney | 2.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 1 | 2.0 |
| Chimney Cr. Res to T41N | RBT Down migration during | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 1.0 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|--|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| R49E sec4 | good water yrs, dry 10months of yr, flow controlled by Chimney | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| T41N R49E sec4 to Head Waters | Occupied by RBT year round, 3miles of reach occupied | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 2.0 |
| Chimney Cr Res. To Winters Cr. | Int/Dry 10mnths/yr, no RBT | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1 | 1.0 |
| Winters Cr. | Recently occupied, but not currently, historic habitat (no record), stocked in 1972 with RBT, ceased in 2000due to fire/livestock grazing | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 2 | 2.0 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sheep Creek- S.F. Owyhee to Sheep Cr. Res | | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 0.5 | 1.0 |
| Sheep Cr. Res to T46n R51E sec 11 | Int/Dry, no RBT, spring down migration | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 1.0 |
| T46n R51e sec 11 to head waters | | 1.5 | 1.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 1.5 |
| Indian Cr. (Trib to S.F. Owyhee) | Occupied RBT through National Forest | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Winters Cr. Trib to Indian Cr | 2 miles occupied RBT through National Forest | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Mitchell Cr. Trib to Indian Cr | 2 miles occupied RBT through National Forest | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Wall Cr. Trib to Indian Cr | 1 Mile occupied RBT through National Forest | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Silver Cr. (Trib to S.F. Owyhee) | 2 miles occupied RBT through National Forest | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| White Rock Cr. | Unoccupied, probably historic, mining influence | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|---|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Cottonwood Canyon Cr. | Unoccupied, probably historic, mining influence | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Breakneck Cr | 2 miles occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Bull Run Cr S.F. Owyhee to Bull Run Canyon | Diverted for Agriculture use | 2.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 0.5 | 3.0 |
| Mouth of Bull Run Canyon to Cap Winn Cr. | probably recruitment from upstream tribs | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 |
| Frost Cr. | Low number of RBT | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 1.0 |
| Cap Winn Cr | Occupied RBT, | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 1.5 |
| Doby George | Occupied RBT, | 3.0 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 2.0 |
| Columbia Cr | Occupied RBT, Low number (200's), Brook Trout abundant | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Blue Jacket Cr | Occupied RBT (700), Brook Trout | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Deep Cr. Trib to S.F. Owyhee | | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.0 | 2 | 1.5 |
| S.F Owyhee to Head Waters | Unoccupied, RBT probably present historically | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Red Cow Cr. | Occupied 1mile by RBT | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 1.5 |
| Amazon | Ephemerial, no record of RBT, probably historic | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 1 | 1.5 |
| Big Cottonwood Trib | 1mile occupied by RBT | 2.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 | 1.5 |
| Harrington Cr | Unsurveyed, Prvt Land, Probable RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 1 | 3.0 |
| Marsh Cr. | Occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Boyd Cr | Occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Scoonover Cr. | Occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Dorsey | Occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Coffin Cr. | Occupied RBT | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Jack Cr | Occupied RBT, no brook trout surveyed in last | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10 | 11. | 12. |
|---|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | 2yrs(used to be abundant) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Chicken Cr | Occupied RBT, | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Mill Cr | Occupied RBT, Brook trout, included 3 forks | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Niagra Cr | No Surveyed Data | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 0.5 | 3.0 |
| Snow Canyon Cr | Occupied RBT, 5 mi occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Jarritt Canyon | Int/Dry, Unoccupied, Histeric Salmon | 2.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 1.5 | 2.5 |
| Burns Cr.(Trib to Jarritt Canyon0 | 1.5 mile occupied on National Forest, Trout Prsnt | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| Schmidtt Cr. | 4 miles occupied | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2 | 3.0 |
| McCann Cr | 5 mile occupied RBT, low desnity RBT | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 | 2.0 |
| Taylor Canyon Cr (trib to S.F. Owyhee) | 2 miles occupied RBT, BT common | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 | 4.0 |
| Water Pipe Canyon (trib to Taylor Canyon) | 2.5 mile occupied RBT | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 2 | 2.0 |

Appendix Table 2.2.3 QHA scores for the Oregon portion of the Owyhee.

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | 12. |
|------------------------------|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Owyhee R-1 | Mouth to Owyhee Ditch Co Dam (RM14) | 3.5 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 1.0 | 0.5 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 1 |
| Owyhee R-2 | DC Dam to RM28 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Owyhee R-3 | Dam to Upstream High Water (RM80) | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | NA |
| Dry Creek | Dry Creek upstream to Crowley Road | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 2 |
| Owyhee R-4 | High Water upstream to Jordan Cr | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Rinehart Creek | Mouth to falls | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 1 |
| Jordan Creek | Mouth to State Line | 2.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 2.5 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 1 |
| Cow Creek | Mouth to State Line | 1.0 | 2.5 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 3.5 | 1.0 | 1.5 | 3.0 | 1.0 | 4.0 | 2.5 | 0.5 |
| Owyhee R-5 | Confl. Jordan Creek upstream to Sline | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| NF Owyhee | Mouth to Sline | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Middle Fork | Idaho Segment () | 1.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 2.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 0 |
| Antelope Creek R-1 | Mouth upstream to corrals (~8 mi) | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Antelope Creek R-2 | Corrals upstream to Star Valley Road (dry segment) | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| Antelope Creek R-3 | SV Road upstream to Headwaters | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 3.5 | 2.5 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |

| 4th Field HUC/ Reach Name | Description | 1. | 2. | 3. | 4. | 5. | 6. | 7. | 8. | 9. | 10. | 11. | 12. |
|------------------------------|--|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| WLO R-1 | Mouth upstream to Anderson Crossing | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.0 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |
| WLO R-2 | Anderson Crossing to headwaters | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 3.5 | 4.0 | 3.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | 2 |

Appendix Table 2.2.4 Key and definitions for QHA habitat attributes for the appendix tables above. The number code in the first column of this table corresponds to the habitat attributes in the header of the QHA rating tables.

| # | Attribute | Description |
|-----|-----------------------|--|
| 1. | Riparian Condition | Condition of the stream-side vegetation, land form and subsurface water flow. |
| 2. | Channel stability | The condition of the channel in regard to bed scour and artificial confinement. Measures how the channel can move laterally and vertically and to form a "normal" sequence of stream unit types. |
| 3. | Habitat Diversity | Diversity and complexity of the channel including amount of large woody debris (LWD) and multiple channels. |
| 4. | Fine sediment load | Amount of fine sediment within the stream, especially in spawning riffles. |
| 5. | High Flow | Frequency and amount of high flow events. |
| 6. | Low Flow | Frequency and amount of low flow events. |
| 7. | Oxygen | Dissolved oxygen in water column and stream substrate. |
| 8. | Low Temperature | Duration and amount of low winter water temperatures that can be limiting to fish survival. |
| 9. | High Temperature | Duration and amount of high summer water temperature that can be limiting to fish survival. |
| 10. | Pollutants | Introduction of toxic (acute and chronic) substances into the stream. |
| 11. | Obstructions | Dam, irrigation diversion, or natural geologic feature that blocks fish movement. |
| 12. | Reach Confidence | Confidence Rating (0-1-2 scale), where: 0 = Speculative; 1 = Expert Opinion; and 2 = Well Documented. |

Appendix Table 2.2.5 Key for scoring habitat attributes in "Current" QHA appendix tables above.

| Score | Attribute Rating | Normative (definition) |
|-------|-------------------|--|
| 0 | 0% of normative | Ideal conditions for similar |
| 1 | 25% of normative | stream in this ecological |
| 2 | 50% of normative | province. Note that this is more from a geomorphic |
| 3 | 75% of normative | perspective than a biological |
| 4 | 100% of normative | perspective. |

2.3 Appendix 3. Description of the Qualitative Habitat Assessment (QHA) Model.

The following sections have excerpts from McConnaha et al. (2003) that explain the basic ecological processes incorporated into the Qualitative Habitat Assessment (QHA) Model.

Source:

Chip McConnaha, Drew Parkin and Jeff Fryer. 2003. QHA User's Guide for Subbasin Planning in Oregon. December 3, 2003. CRITFC, Portland, Oregon <u>fryj@critfc.org</u> and <u>qha@subbasin.org</u>.

2.3.1 Comparison of QHA with Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) used for Anadromous Subbasins.

QHA relies on the same conceptual framework as the more technically sophisticated Ecosystem Diagnosis and Treatment (EDT) technique. There are, however, several significant differences. While each of the habitat characteristics used in QHA is also used in EDT, EDT considers many more habitat factors and seeks to link these directly to measurable data. QHA, by contrast, relies on the judgment of knowledgeable professionals to draw this link.

EDT relies on a set of biological rules derived from the technical literature to establish the link between a species and its habitat. Again, QHA relies on professional judgment to make this link. EDT uses a series of life history trajectories to model the movement of fish through its environment over several life stages. QHA collapse life history into fewer stages and treats each stream reach as a static unit. Again, QHA relies on the knowledge of experts to think through these life history dynamics.

EDT analysis can incorporate, or, more accurately, link to information on out-of-subbasin effects, i.e., survival outside of the natal subbasin. QHA relies on expert opinion to make this connection.

Lastly, EDT produces a series of numerical products that estimate productivity, abundance, and related factors that give an indication of how well habitat supports fish. As a qualitative technique QHA does not generate these outputs but rather produces a series of products that suggest directions for management but explicitly leaves the decision process up to experts.

Appendix 2.3.2 Description of QHA Excel Workbook Tabs/worksheets.

Setup Worksheet

This sheet provides a means for subbasin planners to input essential background information on the drainage being assessed, the focal species being considered, and the people contributing to the assessment. It also provides a brief summary of the method.

Current and Reference Worksheets

Summary. The "reference" and "current" tables are the heart of the assessment. Using these tables subbasin planners characterize the physical condition of the subbasin. This is accomplished by supplying information concerning a range of habitat characteristics, with information arrayed by reach.

Definition of Reference. In the "reference" conditions table we consider what this subbasin would be like if the system were restored to the fullest extent possible short of disrupting infrastructure that is vital to modern society and that is likely to remain in place for the foreseeable future. In a subbasin with little cultural modification this reference condition might equate to "historic" conditions, that is, the conditions that were in place prior to European settlement. By contrast, in a largely urbanized subbasin, say, the lower Willamette in Portland, this might mean accepting the urban fabric but taking aggressive action to restore habitat within the confines of this urban fabric.

Definition of Current. In the "current" conditions table we rate the condition of the aquatic environment as it is today. The one conceivable wrinkle is a situation where significant habitat enhancement is currently underway that would significantly change habitat quality. In these cases planners may decide to characterize current conditions as if these enhancements were complete.

Habitat Characteristics. In both the reference and current condition tables we look at 11 habitat characteristics, or attributes. These eleven are:

- 1. Riparian condition
- 2. Channel form
- 3. Habitat diversity

- 4. Fine sediment
- 5. High flow
- 6. Low flow
- 7. Oxygen
- 8. High temperature
- 9. Low temperature
- 10. Pollutants
- 11. Obstructions

Definitions of the above attributes are found in the QHA "definitions" worksheet.

These are the habitat characteristics that are generally thought to be the main "drivers" of fish production and sustainability. There may, of course, be unique situations where planners believe that other factors may be equally or more important. While, for purposes of consistency we encourage planners to retain the existing list of factors, it is possible to delete a factor and add another -- or to expand the definition of a factor to encompass a more expansive concept. If this is the case, planners should clearly identify the change and document why this change was made. Theoretically it would also be possible to add factors. We have elected to not offer this option as it would decrease consistency and have implications for the Excel algorithms.

To make it easier to interpret results, we have also included a provision for entering distance (river mileage) data for both the reference and current conditions. If stream lengths have changed due to channelization, diversions, filling, or other such activities, the stream mile values can be changed in the reference conditions. Note that this data does not affect results. It only appears in the output as a table giving the number of current miles of habitat and the relative change from the reference condition.

Defining Reaches or Small Watersheds. Here we define a series of "reaches" or "small watersheds" that collectively make up the subbasin. Subbasin planners make the decision regarding whether to use reaches or small watersheds and how these will be defined. A reach (or segment) is a linear stretch of stream that is defined by hydrological or ecological characteristics. A small watershed is a polygonal unit that includes several reaches that drain to the same point. The USGS/EPA hydrologic unit system available at http://NWPCC.bpa.gov provides the basis for developing both reach and watershed definitions.

Reaches may be hydrologically defined, as is the case in the USGS/EPA river reach system where a reach is defined as the area between confluences. The 1:100,000-scale river reach system is the best example. Using this scale a subbasin will typically have between 1,000 and 3,000 reaches depending on size. This is probably beyond the scope of this project and in many cases planners will seek to define larger reaches that would bring the total number down to, say, 60 for the smallest subbasin and 300 for the largest. (This is the number of reaches that the developers of this system consider to be most appropriate for this type of assessment. We base this on (1) the accuracy that is possible through a qualitative assessment, and (2) the amount of time that it will take to fill in the

table.) The alternative to a purely hydrological reach definition is a system based on ecological character, whereby subbasin planners manually review the streams in the subbasin and divide them into meaningful ecologically-consistent segments. The number of reaches will depend on the level of resolution. Planners could "lump" or "split" to arrive at a number of reaches that is scientifically defensible and realistic in terms of workload.

Filling in the Table. The reference and current condition tables consider the relative value of the physical environment to fish productivity and sustainability by viewing each of the 11 habitat factors through the eyes of the focal species that inhabit the area. The cell that forms the intersection between a reach and a habitat characteristic is rated according to the following rating scheme:

- 0 = 0% of normative (range 0%-12.5%)
- 1 = 25% of normative (range 12.5%-37.5%)
- 2 = 50% of normative (range 37.5%-62.5%)
- 3 = 75% of normative (range 62.5%-87.5%)
- 4 = 100% normative (range 87.5%-100%)

There is no magic in the above rating scheme. Our intent was to have enough categories that knowledgeable professionals could discriminate between values but not so many that it would exceed what is considered realistic in a qualitative assessment. Planners have the option of using whole numbers (0 through 4) or using decimal places if they wish to discriminate more finely. We encourage planners to use just whole numbers or, if they must differentiate further, go no further than the midpoints between these whole numbers (i.e. 0.5, 1.5, 2.5, 3.5).

For the algorithm to work each and every cell must be rated. If a cell is not rated, it will be treated as if a zero was entered. If you absolutely do not know give a rating based on what you would suspect it to be and give a low confidence. (One way to do this would be to extrapolate a rating using another similar area where you have a higher level of confidence.)

Confidence Levels. Below the list of habitat characteristics is a row entitled "attribute confidence." In this row subbasin planners have the option of rating the level of confidence that those filling in the table have in their knowledge of each habitat characteristic in this subbasin. The rating scale is as follows:

0 = speculative 1 = expert opinion 2 = well documented

Similarly, at the right side of the table is a column labeled "reach confidence." This provides planners with the option of identifying the confidence that the planners have in their knowledge of individual reaches. The same rating scale is used (as above).

By filling in the row and column confidence ratings it is possible to ascribe a confidence level for any given cell in the table. In fact, this is what the spreadsheet does (though you cannot see it yet.) Essentially, what happens is as follows:

(1) For each cell a rating is given that is the sum of the row and column confidence ratings, i.e., a number between 0 and 4.

- (2) The ratings in each row are added up to give a number between 0 and 44.
- (3) The ratings are averaged, giving a number between 0 and 4.
- (4) The averaged ratings are divided by 4. This gives a final rating between 0 and 1.

In the tornado worksheet you will see a "restoration confidence" and a "protection confidence" rating for each reach. These numbers were derived using the above formula.

Documentation. The table offers the opportunity to identify source materials or make comments. Planners will have to decide the extent to which they wish to use this. At the least, planners should seek to create a list of bibliographic references that they consulted in completing the table. Whether they link these to individual reaches/watersheds or create one list for the subbasin is up to them.

Species Hypothesis Worksheet

The "species hypothesis" worksheet is a table that provides subbasin planners with the opportunity to apply their understanding of biological systems to make decisions regarding the relative importance of each life stage to fish productivity and sustainability. The first order of business is to rate the life stages according to overall importance in the subbasin (the LifeStageRank table). Note that while there are several ways to delineate life stages, we have opted for the most simple – spawning, summer rearing, winter rearing and migration. (Migration also includes adult.) Planners should rate life stages using a 4 to 1 scale, with 4 being most important. You may rate all life stages differently (1, 2, 3, 4) or give some or all life stages the same value. Giving three a weight of 1 and the fourth a weight of 4 would indicate that one is significantly more important than the others. The reason for doing this is to define the life stage that will be used to evaluate the importance of the various habitat factors.

The second task is to rate each habitat characteristic for each life stage (Habitat Attribute table). The scale is as follows:

0 = no effect 1 = does effect 2 = critical effect

By rating both life stages and habitat characteristics you are establishing a simple hypothesis concerning how a given species interacts with its environment in this subbasin. The QHA applies the hypothesis to the information you have developed in the reference and current condition tables to develop a series of products. (We will get to the

products later.) The sample QHA presents one typical hypothesis where spawning is weighted highest, then rearing and certain factors (e.g., sediment) is given a proportionally higher importance for the spawning life stage. The most simple hypothesis would be to rate all life stages equally (any number from 1 to 3 would work but for sake of this discussion use 1) and assume that all habitat characteristics made the same contribution to the species (i.e., give all habitat characteristics a 1 for all four life stages). In practice, it may be useful to consider more than one hypothesis, for example all 1s as described immediately above and one or more hypotheses where you use differential weightings. You could then generate a set of products using both hypotheses and compare findings.

Species Range Worksheet

This Table arrays focal species distribution by reach (Species Range table). You will note that two conditions are identified – reference and current. For each there are four categories – range, spawning/incubation, summer rearing, winter rearing, and migration. The idea is to tag those reaches/small watersheds where the fish are present during any life stage and to weight the importance of that reach to each life stage of the fish. Weightings can range from 0 to 2 where 0 is not present and 2 would be the highest possible weighting. For the current condition biologists will use their knowledge of the subbasin. In many cases there are GIS data layers available to help with this. See www.streamnet.org or contact the river information system people in your state's fish and wildlife agency. For the reference condition you will obviously need to extrapolate from your understanding of what conditions are required by fish at a given life stage and what conditions would be like if the subbasin were fully restored). In almost all cases the current distribution will be the same as - or a subset of - the reference conditions. In a subbasin with little disturbance the reference and current distribution may close to the same. In a disturbed subbasin there may be areas not currently inhabited by the focal species but where the focal species would return if habitat conditions were improved. This is, by the way, the case in the sample QHA where Whale Creek does not currently have fish but could if restored.

One should be aware that the distributionTable and the life stage/habitat characteristics Table interact. That is, in the computations the ratings given in the life stage/habitat characteristics Table are applied to reaches where a given life stage exists. For a hypothesis where all life stages and characteristics received the same weight (e.g., 1), this would have no effect. But if you had weighted one life stage higher than the others, and if a given reach had all four life stages present, the life stage with higher ratings will have greater impact than those with lower ratings.

The user should also rate the percentage of the stream miles utilized by the focal species both currently and in the reference condition. These data are used to compute the miles of a reach currently, and formerly, used by the focal species along with the percentage habitat loss for display on the tornado page. It is not used in the calculation of habitat protection or restoration ratings.

Habitat Ranking Worksheet

This Table identifies relative protection and restoration value by reach and habitat characteristic, based on an algorithm using information from the current, reference, species hypothesis, and species range tables. The highest value is given a 1 (and highlighted in red), followed by 2 and so on. The Table also identifies which reaches/small watersheds offer the most value (to the left of each row under the "reach score" heading) and which habitat characteristics (at the bottom of each column by the "attribute score" heading) are most important. These scores adhere to the same 1, 2, 3 hierarchy.

This Table gives planners a snapshot of what the protection and restoration opportunities may be given the information that was used in creating the table. Planners should not accept this as absolutely correct or as the total answer. Rather, they should use it as a tool to provoke thought. Does this Table.appear to reflect what experts believe to be the case with this system? If not, why is this? What does this suggest about limiting factors? Are there assemblages of habitat characteristics that are influenced by the same upland land uses? Are there opportunities for re-connections between reaches or small watersheds? Are there clusters of reaches/small watersheds in close proximity that exhibit similar characteristics and that should be considered as a group? The Algorithm. The restoration rankings Table is generated from information in the reference and current conditions tables and the hypothesis tables. Rankings are generated initially by the following equation:

where "i" is the life stage (spawning, winter rearing, summer rearing, migration) and j is the reach.

A protection habitat score is computed for each habitat variable as:

A restoration habitat score is computed for each habitat variable as:

Tornado Worksheet

Click on the tornado worksheet and you will see a summary chart that shows, for each reach: (1) relative restoration ratings, (2) relative protection ratings, (3) confidence ratings for each of these, and (4) the miles of current habitat and percent habitat loss. We call the Figure giving relative restoration and protection ratings a tornado because it looks like one. Note that often a reach will have both restoration and protection value. The purpose of this graph is to allow planners to look at the system from a holistic perspective. It also gives an indication of the confidence that planners have in potential restoration and protection priorities and may suggest areas where future research is needed.

To the right of the tornado diagram is a column listing, by reach, the miles of current habitat and the percent habitat loss. This provides a measure of the magnitude of the

task of restoring or protecting a reach, and also provides an estimate of the historic habitat that has been lost.

Miles of current habitat is computed as the sum of the total miles of habitat from the Current sheet multiplied by the Current percent reach utilization from the Species range sheet. A similar computation is made to estimate the total miles of reference habitat. Percent habitat loss is calculated as:

Where C is the total miles of current habitat and H is total miles of historic habitat.

Definitions Worksheet

This worksheet presents definitions for each of the habitat characteristics used in the QHA. It also presents a Table that identifies the types of measurable data that could be useful in determining the condition of each habitat characteristic.

Reference Documents Worksheet

This serves as a repository for bibliographic references and comments. It serves a key documentation role and provides a means to generate a bibliography for the assessment portion of the plan document.

How do we deal with areas were we have no information?

Information gaps are an issue regardless of assessment technique. A technique based on expert opinion (as is the case with QHA) probably allows more flexibility for dealing with this issue than a purely quantitative approach that relies on measurable field sampling. One approach for dealing with this is to identify similar watersheds where there is a good base of information and assume that the target watershed has similar environmental characteristics and biological responses. If this is done it is important to make note of this in the comment fields. Planners will also want to give a confidence rating that reflects this. If there is no information and no similar watersheds (a highly unlikely scenario), planners may leave blank those rows in the "current" habitat rating Table where this is the case. If this is the case please leave the entire row blank or the program will attempt to compute a score with only partial information and errors will result.

The QHA responds to two of the major criticisms of qualitative assessment approaches in that: (1) it channels expert opinion into a logical and sequential thought process, and (2) it provides a means to track and document decisions. In addition, just because this is labeled a qualitative approach does not mean that it ignores quantitative information. Quite the contrary, planners who use QHA are urged to base their assessments on measurable data wherever and whenever these exist.

2.4 Appendix 4. Sensitive Plants.

| Appendix Table 2.4.1 | Listing of Sensitive Plants in the Owyhee |
|----------------------|---|
| Subbasin (ONHP 2001; | ICDC 2001; NNHP 2001a; NNHP 2001b) |

| Scientific Name | Common Name | NVE ¹ | NVH | OR | ID |
|---|--|------------------|-----|----|----|
| Allenrolfea occidentalis | lodine bush | | | x | |
| Allium bisceptrum | Two-stemmed onion | | | X | |
| Amsinckia carinata | Malheur Valley fiddleneck | | | X | |
| Angelica kingii | Nevada angelica | | | | X |
| Antennaria arcuata | Meadow pussytoes | X | | | |
| Arabis falcatoria | Grouse Creek rockcress | X | | | |
| Arabis falcifructa | Elko rockcress | x | | | |
| Argemone munita | Prickly-poppy | | | X | |
| Artemisia packardiae | Packard's artemisia | | | X | |
| Artemisia papposa | Owyhee sagebrush | | | X | |
| Astragalus alvordensis | Alvord milkvetch | | | X | |
| Astragalus anserinus | Good Creek milkvetch | X | | | |
| Astragalus atratus var. owyheensis | Owyhee milkvetch | | | x | |
| Astragalus calycosus | King's rattleweed | | | X | |
| Astragalus calycosus var. monophyllidius | One-leaflet torrey milkvetch | X | | | |
| Astragalus jejunus var. jejunus | Starveling milkvetch | X | | | |
| Astragalus lentiginosus var. latus | Broad-pod freckled milkvetch | X | | | |
| Astragalus mulfordiae | Mulford's milkvetch | | | X | X |
| Astragalus newberryi var. castoreus | Newberry's milkvetch | | | | X |
| Astragalus purshii var. ophiogenes | Snake River milkvetch | | | x | X |
| Astragalus robbinsii var. occidentalis | Lamoille Canyon milkvetch | X | | | |
| Astragalus solitarius | Lonesome milkvetch | | X | | |
| Astragalus sterilis | Barren milkvetch | | | | x |
| Astragalus sterilis var. cusickii | Sterile milkvetch | | | x | |
| Astragalus tetrapterus | Four-wing milkvetch | | | X | X |
| Astragalus tiehmii | Tiehm milkvetch | | x | | |
| Astragalus yoder- williamsii | Osgood Mountains/Mud Flat milkvetch | X | X | | X |

| Scientific Name | Common Name | NVE ¹ | NVH | OR | ID |
|--|---|------------------|-----|----|----|
| Atriplex powellii | Powell's saltbush | | | X | |
| Bergia texana | Texas bergia | | | X | |
| Blepharidachne kingii | King's desertgrass | | | | х |
| Camissonia palmeri | Palmer's evening primrose | | | X | х |
| Camissonia pterosperma | Winged-seed evening primrose | | | | х |
| Carex hystericina | Porcupine sedge | | | X | |
| Carex tumulicola | Foothill sedge | | | | X |
| Castilleja pallescens var. inverta | Inverted pale paintbrush | | | X | |
| Caulanthus barnebyi | Barneby stemflower | | x | | |
| Caulanthus pilosus | Hairy wild cabbage | | | Х | |
| Chaenactis cusickii | Cusick's false yarrow/Cusick's chaenactis | | | x | x |
| Chaenactis macrantha | Large-flowered chaenactis | | | X | |
| Chaenactis stevioides | Desert pincushion | | | | x |
| Cleomella plocasperma | Alkali cleomella | | | | X |
| Collomia renacta | Barren Valley collomia | X | | X | |
| Coryphantha vivipara | Cushion cactus | | | | х |
| Cryptantha humilis | Low cryptantha | | | | |
| Cryptantha propria | Malheur cryptantha | | | | |
| Cryptantha schoolcraftii | Schoolcraft catseye | | x | | |
| Cymopterus acaulis var. greeleyorum | Greeley's cymopterus/Greeley's wavewing | | | X | x |
| Cymopterus longipes ssp. Ibapensis | Ibapah wavewing | | | | |
| Cyperus rivularis | Shining flatsedge | | | | x |
| Damasonium californicum | Fringed waterplantain | | | | x |
| Dimeresia howellii | Dimeresia | | | | х |
| Downingia bacigalupii | Bacigalupi's downingia | | | | x |
| Downingia insignis | Downingia | | | | x |
| Dryopteris filix-mas | Male fern | | | | |
| Eatonella nivea | White eatonella | | | | x |
| Epipactis gigantea | Giant helleborine | | | | X |
| Erigeron latus | Broad fleabane | X | | X | |
| Eriogonum anemophilum | Windloving buckwheat | | X | | |
| Eriogonum argophyllum | Sulphur Springs buckwheat | X | | | |
| Eriogonum chrysops | Golden buckwheat | | | X | |
| Eriogonum crosbyae | Crosby buckwheat | | x | | |

| Scientific Name | Common Name | NVE ¹ | NVH | OR | ID |
|---|--|------------------|-----|----|----|
| Eriogonum lewisii | Lewis buckwheat | X | | | |
| Eriogonum ochrocephalum | Ochre-flowered buckwheat | | | X | |
| Eriogonum salicornioides | Playa buckwheat | | | X | |
| Eriogonum shockleyi var. packardiae | Packard's buckwheat | | | | x |
| Eriogonum shockleyi var. shockleyi | Matted cowpie buckwheat | | | | X |
| Glyptopleura marginata | White-margined wax plant | | | | X |
| Hackelia cronquistii | Cronquist's stickseed | | | Х | |
| Hackelia ophiobia | Rattlesnake stickseed/Three Fork's stickseed | | | X | X |
| Hackelia patens var. patens | Spreading stickseed | | | X | |
| Heliotropium curassavicum | Salt heliotrope | | | x | |
| Hymenoxys cooperi var. canescens | Cooper's goldenflower | | | X | |
| Ipomopsis polycladon | Spreading gilia | | | | X |
| lvesia rhypara var. rhypara | Grimy ivesia | X | X | X | |
| lvesia shockleyi var. shockleyi | Shockley's ivesia | | | x | |
| Juncus torreyi | Torrey's rush | | | X | |
| Langloisia setosissima spp. punctata | Punctate langloisa | | | X | |
| Lathyrus grimesii | Grimes' vetchling | X | | | |
| Lepidium davisii | Davis' peppergrass | X | | X | X |
| Lepidium montanum var. nevadense | Pueblo Valley peppergrass | | X | | |
| Lepidium papilliferum | Slick spot peppergrass | | | | X |
| Leptodactylon glabrum | Bruneau River prickly phlox | x | Х | | X |
| Lipocarpha aristulata | Aristulate lipocarpha | | | Х | |
| Lomatium foeniculaceum var. fimbriatum | Fringed desert-parsley | | | X | |
| Lomatium packardiae | Succor Creek parsley (Packards' desert parsley) | | X | x | X |
| Lomatium ravenii | Raven's lomatium | | | X | |
| Lupinus biddlei | Biddle's lupine | | | X | |
| Lupinus uncialis | Inch-high lupine | | | | X |
| Lygodesmia juncea | Rush-like skeletonweed | | | X | |

| Scientific Name | Common Name | NVE ¹ | NVH | OR | ID |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|
| Malacothrix torreyi | Torrey's malacothrix | | | X | |
| Melica stricta | Nodding melic | | | X | |
| Mentzelia mollis | Smooth stickleaf/Smooth mentzelia | | X | x | X |
| Mentzelia packardiae | Packard stickleaf/Packard's mentzelia | X | | x | |
| Mirabilis bigelovii var. retrorsa | Bigelow's four-o'clock | | | x | |
| Muhlenbergia minutissima | Annual dropseed | | | X | |
| Nemacladus rigidus | Rigid threadbush | | | | X |
| Oryctes nevadensis | Oryctes | | х | | |
| Oxytropis sericea var. sericea | White locoweed | | | X | |
| Pediocactus simpsonii | Simpson's hedgehog cactus | | | X | X |
| Penstemen floribundus | Cordelia beardtongue | | x | | |
| Penstemon janishiae | Janish's penstomen | | | x | X |
| Penstemon kingii | King's penstemon | | | X | |
| Penstemon perpulcher | Beautiful penstemon | | | X | |
| Penstemon pratensis | White-flowered penstemon | | | x | |
| Penstemon seorsus | Short-lobed penstemon | | | x | |
| Penstomen procerus var. modestus | Small flower beardtongue | X | | | |
| Peteria thompsoniae | Spine-noded milkvetch | | | | X |
| Phacelia gymnoclada | Naked-stemmed phacelia | | | x | |
| Phacelia inundata | Playa phacelia | | X | | |
| Phacelia lutea var. calva | Malheur yellow phacelia | | | | X |
| Phacelia lutea var. mackenzieorum | Mackenzie's phacelia | | | X | |
| Phacelia minutissima | Least phacelia | X | | | X |
| Physaria chambersii | Chambers twinpod | | | X | |
| Plantago eriopoda | Hairy-foot plantain | | | X | |
| Polystichum kruckebergii | Kruckeberg's holly fern | | | X | |
| Potentilla basaltica | Soldier Meadow cinquefoil | | X | | |
| Potentilla cottamii | Cottam cinquefoil | X | | | |
| Primula capillaris | Ruby Mountains primrose | x | | | |
| Psathyrotes annua | Annual brittlebrush | | | | X |
| Psorothamnus kingii | Lahontan indigobush | | x | | |
| Pyrrocoma radiata | Snake River goldenweed | | | X | |
| Rafinesquia californica | California chicory | | | X | |

| Scientific Name | Common Name | NVE ¹ | NVH | OR | ID |
|--|---|------------------|-----|----|----|
| Senecio ertterae | Ertter's senecio | | | X | |
| Silene nachlingerae | Nachlinger catchfly | Х | | | |
| Smelowskia holmgrenii | Holmgren smelowskia | | X | | |
| Stanleya confertiflora | Biennial princesplume/Biennial stanleya | | | x | X |
| Stylocline filaginea | Stylocline | | | | x |
| Stylocline psilocarphoides | Malheur stylocline | | | x | |
| <i>Teucrium canadense var. occidentale</i> | American wood sage | | | | x |
| Thelypodium howellii spp. spectabilis | Howell's spectacular thelypody | | | x | |
| Trifolium leibergii | Leiberg clover | X | | | |
| Trifolium owyheense | Owyhee clover | | | x | х |
| Viola lithion | Rock violet | X | | | |
| Lichens | | | | | |
| Aspicilia fruticulosa | Rim Lichen | | X | | |
| Catapyrenium congestum | (no common name) | | | | x |

¹ID = Idaho Conservation Data Center

NVH = Nevada Natural Heritage Program Humboldt County NVE = Nevada Natural Heritage Program Elk County

OR = Oregon Natural Heritage Program

\\schrepel\plans\owyhee\appendix 2 for osp technical assessment.doc